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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 

NOTICE 

Correspondence Office: 
406. Hubtown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6140 8000 

Rc•~islorcd Otlicc: 
91 Oil 9. Suryaki,·,111. 

Kaslurba Gandhi Marg. 
New Ddhi - 110 001 

T: +Ol l-6~172100 

E: lcnn isolarfan us(ti'ia vaada.com 
www.avaad:1c-ncrgy.com 

NOTICE is hereby given that the ninth annual general meeting of the members of 

Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited ("The Company") will be held on Monday, 
September 26, 2022 at 10.35 a.m. at 406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N.S. Phadke 

Marg, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual financial statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of 
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

2. To ratify remuneration of M/s HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force, the members of the Company hereby ratify the 

remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand Only) payable to 

M/ s HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number-000525), who 

has been appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company 

to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-
23. 
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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 

406, Hubtown Solaris, 
N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 

Mumbai • 400069 
T: +91-22-6140 8000 

Rcgis1crcd Ofl1c,•: 

910/ 19. Suryakiran. 

Kaslurba Gandhi Murg. 

N~w Delhi - 110 00 1 

T : +011-6S 172 100 
E:lcnnisolarfa rmsWhva:u..la.com 

www.avaadacncrgy.com 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, 

the Directors and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and matters that may be required in 
this regard." 

Place: N oida 
Date: May 30, 2022 
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By Order of the Board 
For Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited y;. 

st e:: Mankar 
Company Secretary 



NOTES: 

Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 
406, Hubtown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6140 8000 

R"gistcrcd Otlicc: 
91 0/ 19 . S11ryakira11, 

K:.tsturb:1 Gandhi Marg. 
New Delhi - 110 00 1 

'I': +0 11-(,8 172100 

Ii : l'cnnisolarfor111s/fi):1 v:.tad:1.com 
www.:w;1atl:1cncrgy.com 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES 
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and 

deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 
the Meeting. 

2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend 

the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the 
Board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their 
behalf at the Meeting. 

3. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the annual general meeting in 

respect of Item no. 2 is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice. 
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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40 I 06DL20 l 3FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 
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N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6 140 8000 

Registered Oflicc: 
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K..isturba Gandhi Marg. 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 2: 

As the turnover of the Company during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 

had exceeded Rs. 50 crores, in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit Rules) 2014 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 

in their meeting held on May 30, 2022 had approved the re-appointment of M/ s 

HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2023 at an annual remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five 

Thousand Only). 

Further, in accordance with the said provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

thereunder, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as approved by the 

Board, needs to be ratified by the members of the Company. 

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought for the remuneration payable to 

the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2023 by approving the 
passing of an ordinary resolution as set out at Item No. 2 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives 

are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Place: N oida 
Date: May 30, 2022 
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By Order of the Board 
For Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 

~ -
Shweta Mankar 
Company Secretary 



Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 
406. Hubtown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai • 400069 

T : +91 -22-6140 8000 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Registered O ffice: 
910/19. Su,y :ikir,111, 

Kasl!l rba Gandhi M:irg. 
New Delhi - I IO 001 

T: +01 1-681721 00 
E:fl!rmi:mlarfarms(@av:1ada.co1n 

www.:waatlacncrgy.com 

To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall 
9th Annual General Meeting 

Monday, September 26, 2022 at 10.35 a.m 

Name of the Member(s) 

Registered address 
E-mail ID 

Folio No./DP ID-client 
ID 

No. of Shares 

I/We certify that I/We am/are the registered Member(s)/Proxy for the registered 
Member(s) of the Company. 

I/We hereby record my/ our presence at the 9th annual general meeting of the 
Company held at406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N.S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai - 400069 on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 10.35 a.m. 

Member' s /Proxy Signature 

Note: Please complete this slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting 
venue. 
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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 
406, Hubtown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6140 8000 

Form no. MGT-11 
Proxy Form 

Rc~istcrcd Ofticc: 
910/19. Su,, •akirnn. 

Kasturba Gruu.lhi M,·1rg. 
New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +011-681 72100 
E: lcnnisolarfarms(ii>avaada.com 

www.ava:1d:1('11crgy.co111 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Management and Administration Rules, 2014] 

CIN U40106DL2013FTC248848 
Name of the Company Fermi SolarfarmsPrivate Limited 
Registered Office 910/19, Suryakiran, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 

New Delhi- 110 001 
Name of the member(s) 

Registered Address 

E-mail ID 

Folio No./ Client ID 

DPID 

I/We, being the member(s) of ______ shares of the above named Company, 
hereby appoint: 

1. Name Address 
Signature: or failing him 

2. Name Address 

Signature: or failing him 
3. Name Address 

Signature: or failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 

the 9th annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, September 26, 
2022 at 10.35 a.m. at 406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N.S. Phadke Marg, Andheri 

(East), Mumbai - 400069 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below: 
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Sr. No. of 
resolution 

Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40I06DL2013FTC248848 

Particulars 

Correspondence Office: 
406, Hubtown Solaris, 

N . S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai • 400069 

T: +91-22-6140 8000 

Registered Otlice: 
9 I 0/ 19. Suryakiran. 

Kasturba Gand hi M:irg. 

New Delhi - I 10 001 

T : +011 -68172 100 

E: fCrmisolarfonns@nvaatla.com 
ww,,·.a,·::.rntlacncrgy.com 

For Against 

Ordinary Resolution: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual 

financial statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon 

2. To ratify remuneration of M/ s HCB & Co., the 
Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2022-23 

Signed this ___ day of ______ 2022 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Signature of shareholder 

Notes: 

Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

This Jann, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at 
the registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
meeting. 

Notwithstanding the above the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the 
meeting by the shareholders present. 
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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
CIN: U40I06DL2013FTC248848 

Correspondence Office: 
406, Hublown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6140 8000 

BOARD's REPORT 
To, 
The Members, 
Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited ("the Company") 

Rt:~is tcrcd Office: 

910/19. S111y ak1ra11, 
Kasturba Ga11dhi Marg. 

New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +O J 1-68172100 
E:fonnisolarforms@avaada.com 

W\\'w.avaad:1cnrrgy.con1 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 9th Annual 

Report together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended March 31, 2022 as under: 

Financial Results and Business Review: 

A summary of the comparative financial performance of the Company for Financial 
Years 2021-22 and 2020-21 is presented below: 

(Amount in INR millions) 
Particulars Financial Year ended 

31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Revenue from Operations 675.38 727.26 
Other Income 38-51 67.85 
Total Income 713.89 795.11 
Less: Expenditure 172.16 131.1? 
Profit/ (loss) before Depreciation, Interest and Tax 541.73 663.94 
Less: Depreciation and amortization expenses 180.59 180.51 
Less: Interest on external borrowings 282.23 349.48 

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional and extraordinary 78.91 133.95 
items 

Less: Exceptional and extraordinary items - -
Profi1/(loss) before Tax (PBT) 78.91 133.95 
Provision for Income Tax 

(i) Current Tax - -
(ii) Deferred Tax 50.92 41.14 
(iii) MAT credit -
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT) 27.99 92.81 

The Company has 80 MW (AC) Solar Power Project operational at Chalisgaon in the 
State of Maharashtra. The Company's revenue from operations during the year was 
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Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
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Correspondence Office: 
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N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
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T: +91-22-6140 8000 

Registered Office: 
9 10/19. Suryakir.in. 
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INR 675.38 millions as compared to revenue of INR 727.26 millions in the previous 

year, whereas profit before tax of the Company was INR 78.91 millions as compared 
to the profit before tax of INR 133.95 millions in the previous year. 

Further, the Company's net profit after tax was INR 27.99 millions as compared to 
net profit after tax of INR 92.81 millions in the last year. 

Dividend: 

To strengthen the financial position of the Company and to augment working 
capital, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year 2021-22. 

Reserves: 

The Company do not wish to transfer any amount of its profits earned during the 

year to any specific reserves and wishes to plough back the profits for growth of the 
Company. 

Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies: 

Your Company continues to be the Subsidiary Company of Avaada Energy Private 

Limited. Further, the Company has no subsidiary or associates or joint ventures 
during the said period. 

Renewable Energy Outlook: 

COVID-19 Economic Stimulus and Performance of Power Sector in India 

India, as a nation, has stood firmly to manage the unprecedented challenge caused 

by COVID-19. The management model adopted at the national and the state level, 
has been well lauded nationally and internationally during these trying times for 

planning and execution. The second wave has caught the nation unaware with its 

rapidity and magnitude. India stood strong and has not witnessed a breakdown in 

the supply chain of health infrastructure despite the effect of the virus. 
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Unarguably, the second wave of the COVID pandemic was more severe and 

electricity being an essential service, the Government was expected to support the 
local communities, administration and Government machinery in the battle against 
the Pandemic through seamless 24X7 electricity service. 

The second wave of COVID-19 showed its devastating effect mainly in the month of 

April-May 2021. The response to the second wave was handled by the state 

governments by implementing lockdowns and closing their borders. As all efforts 
were being made to maintain reliability of power system even during COVID-19 

pandemic, the all India lockdown for containment of COVID-19 from 25th March 
2020 onwards had resulted in reduction of all India Electricity Demand by 25-30% as 

compared to the same period in 2019 due to shutting down of a large chunk of 
industrial, commercial and traction loads. Subsequently, with gradual removal of 

lock down and re-opening of the country's economy, the electricity demand started 
recovering. However, due to the second wave of the pandemic which started in 

April 2021, many states re-imposed lockdowns but due to the decentralized nature 
of lockdowns, impact on all India demand was lower than first wave. 

Against the backdrop of the unprecedented impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 

the economy, the government introduced a stimulus package under the 

Atmanirbhar Bharat scheme to revive economic growth and make the country self­

reliant. In the last tranche of the stimulus package, the government increased the 

borrowing limit of the states from 3% to 5% of the gross state domestic product 
(GSDP). 

Whereas Government of India have duly recognized COVID-19 Pandemic as an 

event of Force Majeure in the Contracts/ Agreements signed for execution of power/ 
renewable energy projects and granted extension in timelines for completion of the 

projects; during first wave (FY 2020-21) the blanket extension was granted for five 

months and upto six months on case to case basis and during the second wave, 
extension was granted for seventy six (76) days. 

Renewable Energy Prospect in India 

The Indian renewable energy sector is the fourth most attractive renewable energy 
market in the world. India was ranked fourth in wind power, fifth in solar power 

and fourth in renewable power installed capacity, as of 2020. 
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Installed renewable power generation capacity has gained pace over the past few 
years, posting a CAGR of 17.33% between FY 16-20. With the increased support of 

Government and improved economics, the sector has become attractive from 

investors perspective. As India looks to meet its energy demand on its own, which is 

expected to reach 15,820 TWh by 2040, renewable energy is set to play an important 

role. The government plans to establish renewable energy capacity of 523 GW 
(including 73 GW from Hydro) by 2030. 

The renewable energy sector outlook for the year 2022 is bright despite the COVID-

19 disruptions. The sector has certainly found the path to recovery with a steady 

improvement in power demand and recovery in economic activities. The sun is 

shining bright on the Indian power sector with the share of renewable energy 
constantly on the rise in the country's total energy mix. 

Market Size for Renewable Energy in India 

Programme/Scheme wise Cumulative Physical Progress as on April, 2022 
FY-2022-23 Cumulative 

Sector Achievements Achievements 
(April 2022) (as on 30th_April-2022) 

I. Installed RE Capacity (CAPACITIES IN MW) 

Wind Power 170.50 40528.08 
Solar Power* 1341.10 55337.66 
Small Hydro Power 2.00 4850.90 
Biomass (Bagasse) 

0.00 9433.56 
Cogeneration 

Biomass (non-bagasse) 
0.00 772.05 

Cogeneration 

Waste to Power 0.00 223.14 

Waste to Energy (off-grid) 0.00 253.61 

Total 1513.60 111399.00 

India is targeting about 450 Gigawatt (GW) of installed renewable energy capacity 

by 2030 - about 280 GW (over 60%) is expected from solar. The renewable energy 

capacity addition stood at 8.2 GW for the first eight months of FY22 against 3.4 GW 
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for the first eight months of FY21. ICRA expects renewable energy capacity addition 
of 12.5 GW in FY22 and 16 GW in FY23. 

Solar power installed capacity has increased by more than 18 times from 2.63 GW in 

March 2014 to 49.3 GW at the end of 2021. In FY22, till December 2021, India has 

added 7.4 GW of solar power capacity, up 335% from 1.73 GW in the previous year. 
Off-grid solar power is growing at a fast pace in India, with sales of 329,000 off-grid 
solar products in the first half of 2021. 

With a potential capacity of 363 GW and with policies focused on the renewable 

energy sector, Northern India is expected to become the hub for renewable energy in 
India. 

Investments and Developments 

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and 

Internal Trade (DPIIT), FDI inflow in the Indian non-conventional energy sector 

stood at US$ 11.21 billion between April 2000-December 2021. More than INR 5.2 

lakh crore (US$ 70 billion) has been invested in India's renewable energy sector since 
2014. According to the analytics firm British Business Energy, India ranked 3rd 

globally in terms of its renewable energy investments and plans in 2020. 

Some major investments and developments in the Indian renewable energy sector 
are as follows: 

• India ranked third on the EY Renewable Energy Country Attractive Index 2021; 

• In February 2022, Creduce Technologies-HCPL JV announced winning the bid for 

India's single largest hydro power carbon credits project with Satluj Jal Vidyut 

Nigam, which will create more than 80 million carbon credits; 

• In February 2022, Husk Power Systems, a renewable energy company working 

towards rural electrification, secured a US$ 4.2 million loan from the Indian 
Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA); 
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• In December 2021, India's largest energy provider, Tata Power, was awarded a 

contract by the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited 

(MSEDCL) to set up a 300 MW wind-solar hybrid power plant; 

• In October 2021, Reliance New Energy Solar Ltd. (RNESL) announced two 

acquisitions to build more capabilities. Both acquisitions - REC Solar Holdings AS 

(REC Group), a Norway-based firm, and Sterling & Wilson Solar, based in India -

exceeded US$ 1 billion and are expected to contribute to Reliance' s target of 

achieving the capacity of 100 GW of solar energy at Jarnnagar by 2030; 

• In October 2021, Adani Green Energy Ltd. (AGEL) acquired SB Energy India for 

US$ 3.5 billion to strengthen its position in the renewable energy sector in India; 

• In August 2021, Copenhagen Infrastructure Partners (CIP) signed an investment 

agreement with Amp Energy India Private Limited to facilitate joint equity 

investments of US$ 200 million across Indian renewable energy projects; 

• In July 2021, National Thermal Power Corporation Renewable Energy Ltd. (NTPC 

REL), NTPC's fully owned subsidiary, sent out a tender to domestic 

manufacturers to build India's first green hydrogen fueling station in Leh, 
Ladakh; 

• In June 2021, Reliance Industries announced investments upto INR 75,000 crore 

(US$10.07 billion) in the green energy segment; 

• In June 2021, Suzlon secured a contract for 252 MW wind power project from CLP 
India. The project is expected to be commissioned in 2022; 

• In June 2021, Tata Power Solar secured a contract worth INR 686 crore (US$ 93.58 

million) from the NTPC to build 210 MW projects in Gujarat; 

• In May 2021, Virescent Infrastructure, a renewable energy platform, acquired 76 % 

of India's solar asset portfolio of Singapore-based Sindicatum Renewable Energy 
Company Pte Ltd.; 

• In April 2021, GE Power India's approved the acquisition of 50% stake in NTPC 

GE Power Services Pvt. Ltd. for Rs 7.2 crore (US$ 0.96 million); 
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• The NTPC is expected to commission India's largest floating solar power plant in 

Ramagundam, Telangana by May-June 2022. The expected total installed capacity 
is 447MW; and 

• The Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI) implemented large-scale central 
auctions for solar parks and has awarded contracts for 47 parks with over 25 GW 
of combined capacity. 

Government initiatives 

Some initiatives by Government of India to boost India's renewable energy sector 
are as follows: 

• Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 

The Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 
on 31.12.2020 under section 176 of the Electricity Act, 2003. These Rules shall 

empower the consumers of electricity and emanate from the conviction that the 

power systems exist to serve the consumers and the consumers have rights to get 

the reliable services and quality electricity. 

Implementation of these Rules shall ensure that new electricity connections, 

refunds and other services are given in a time bound manner. Wilful disregard to 

consumer rights will result in levying penalties on service providers. 

An amendment to Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 was also notified 

on 29.09.2021 wherein the limit for net metering was increased to S00KW from 
l0KW. 

• Late Payment Surcharge Rules 2021 

Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge) Rules, 2021 have been notified by the Central 

Government on 22nd February, 2021. Late Payment Surcharge means the charges 

payable by a distribution company to a generating company or electricity trader 

for power procured from it, or by a user of a transmission system to a 

transmission licensee on account of delay in payment of monthly charges beyond 
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the due date. Late Payment Surcharge shall be payable on the payment 
outstanding after the due date at the base rate of Late Payment Surcharge 
applicable for the period for the first month of default. 

• Waiver of ISTS Transmission Charges and Losses for Solar & Wind Power 

In Order to promote generation from renewable sources of energy, Ministry of 
Power has issued an Order on 5th August 2020 for extension of waiver of Inter 
State Transmission System (ISTS) charges and losses for transmission of the 
electricity generated from solar and wind projects commissioned till 30th June 
2023. Further an order was issued on 21.06.2021 for extension of waiver of Inter 
State Transmission System (ISTS) charges for transmission of the electricity 
generated from solar and wind projects up to 30.06.2025. Moreover vide this order 
the waiver of ISTS charges shall also be allowed for Hydro Pumped Storage 
Plant(PSP) and Battery Energy Storage System(BESS). 

• Issuance of Renewable Purchase Obligations (RPO) Trajectory 

Long term RPO growth trajectory for the period 2016-17 to 2018-19 was notified 
by Ministry of Power on 22.7.2016. An order on RPO Trajectory for a further 
period of three years i.e. from 2019-20 to 2021-22 under the provisions of Tariff 
Policy has been issued by Ministry of Power on 14.06.2018. In super-session of 
orders dated 22.7.2016 and 14.06.2018, Ministry of Power has specified new RPO 
trajectory vide order dated 29.01.2021. Trajectory for HPO has also been issued 
through this order. 

This would help in meeting the renewable energy generation targets set by the 
Central Government. 

• Introduction of Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) 

Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) is a marketplace for trading of renewable 
power on a day-ahead basis. This would facilitate accomplishment of green 
targets as well as support integration of green energy in a most efficient, 

competitive and transparent manner. GDAM was launched on 25.10.2021. 
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The Green day Ahead Market will be available through the Power Exchanges. The 
GDAM market structure will be within the existing Day Ahead Market (DAM) 
structure but will create a separate clearing mechanism and price discovery for 
renewable and conventional energy sources_ 

It will give opportunity to the RE generators to sell their power and reduce 

curtailment and also the buyer of RE to transparently purchase green power from 
the market. It would also facilitate the obligated entities to meet its Renewable 
Purchase Obligation (RPO). 

• Electricity (Timel Recovery of Costs due to Change in Law) Rules, 2021 

Timely recovery of the costs due to change in law is having importance as the 
investment in the power sector largely depends upon the timely payments. At 
present the pass through under change of law is taking a lot of time, forcing the 
drying of the investment in the power sector. If payment is not made in time, it 
impacts the viability of the sector and the developers get financially stressed. If 
this is not addressed now, the investment will not come and the electricity 
consumers may face shortages of power once again. In order to address this issue, 
Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Timely Recovery of Costs due to 
Change in Law) Rules, 2021 on 22.10.2021. 

• Electricity (Promotion of generation of Electricity from Must-Run Power Plant) 
Rules, 2021 

Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Promotion of generation of Electricity 
from Must-Run Power Plant) Rules, 2021 on 22.10.2021 to help in promotion of the 
generation from renewable sources. This will ensure that the consumers get green 
and clean power and secure a healthy environment for the future generation. 

• Implementation of Phase- 1 of Market Based Economic Despatch (MBED) 

With the objective of redesigning of present market mechanism for lowering the 
cost of power purchase to the Consumers, Framework for Implementation of 
Phase 1 of Market Based Economic Despatch (MBED) wherein mandatory 
participation by ISGS (Inter State Generation Stations) plants and voluntary 
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participation by other generators, was communicated to CERC for 
implementation from 1st April, 2022. 

• Redesigning the Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Mechanism 

Ministry of Power assent was given to make amendment in the existing 

Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) mechanism, in order to align the present REC 

mechanism with the emerging changes in the power scenario and also to promote 
new renewable technologies. 

• In the Union Budget 2022-23, the allocation for the Solar Energy Corporation of 

India (SECI), which is currently responsible for the development of the entire 

renewable energy sector, stood at INR 1,000 crores (US$ 132 million) 

• In the Budget, the government allocated INR 19,500 crore (US$ 2.57 billion) for a 

PU scheme to boost manufacturing of high-efficiency solar modules 

• In February 2022, Nepal and India agreed to form a Joint Hydro Development 

Committee to explore the possibility of viable hydropower projects 

• In November 2021, at the COP-26 Summit in Glasgow, Prime Minister 

Mr. Narendra Modi made a promise to increase India's renewable energy 

generation capacity to 500 GW, and meet 50% of India's energy needs through 
renewable means by the year 2030 

• In October 2021, the Ministry of Power announced a new set of rules aimed at 

reducing financial stress for stakeholders and safeguarding timely cost recovery 
in electricity generation 

• In August 2021, the Indian government proposed new rules for the purchase and 

consumption of green energy. The latest rules are a part of government measures 

to encourage large-scale energy consumers, including industries, to leverage 

renewable energy sources for regular operations 

• In July 2021, to encourage rooftop solar (RTS) throughout the country, notably in 
rural regions, the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy plans to undertake 
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Rooftop Solar Programme Phase II, which aims to install RTS capacity of 4,000 

MW in the residential sector by 2022 with a provision of subsidy 

• In July 2021, the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE) gave the go 

ahead to NTPC Renewable Energy Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of NTPC, to build a 
4,750 MW renewable energy park at the Rann of Kutch in Khavada, Gujarat. This 

will be India's largest solar park to be developed by the country's leading power 
producer 

• In June 2021, India launched the Mission Innovation CleanTech Exchange, a 

global initiative that will create a whole network of incubators across member 
countries to accelerate clean energy innovation 

• In June 2021, Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Ltd. (IREDA) 

invited bids from solar module manufacturers for setting up solar manufacturing 

units under the central government's INR 4,500 crore (US$ 616.76 million) 
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme 

• In April 2021, the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) and CEEW's Centre for 

Energy Finance (CEEW-CEF) jointly launched the India Renewables Dashboard 

that provides detailed operational information on renewable energy (RE) projects 
in India 

• In April 2021, the Ministry of Power (MoP) released the draft National Electricity 

Policy (NEP) 2021 and has invited suggestions from all stakeholders such as 

Central Public Sector Undertakings, Solar Energy Corporation of India, power 
transmission companies, financial institutions like Reserve Bank of India, Indian 

Renewable Energy Development Agency, HDFC Bank, ICICI Bank, industrial, 
solar, and wind associations and state governments 

• The Government of India has announced plans to implement a US$ 238 million 

National Mission on advanced ultra-supercritical technologies for cleaner coal 
utilisation 

• Indian Railways is taking increased efforts through sustained energy efficient 

measures and maximum use of clean fuel to cut down emission level by 33% by 

2030 and 
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• The government has spent US$ 4.63 billion on hydroelectric projects to provide 
electricity to villages in Jammu and Kashmir from 2018-21-

Road Ahead 

The Government is committed to increased use of clean energy sources and is 
already undertaking various large-scale sustainable power projects and promoting 

green energy heavily. In addition, renewable energy has the potential to create many 

employment opportunities at all levels, especially in rural areas. India's renewable 

energy sector is expected to attract investment worth US$ 80 billion in the next four 

years. About 5,000 compressed biogas plants will be set up across India by 2023. 

In 2022, India's renewable energy sector is expected to boom with a likely 

investment of US$ 15 billion this year, as the government focuses on electric vehicles, 

green hydrogen and manufacturing of solar equipment. 

It is expected that by 2040, around 49% of the total electricity will be generated by 

renewable energy as more efficient batteries will be used to store electricity, which 

will further cut the solar energy cost by 66% as compared to the current cost. Use of 

renewables in place of coal will save India INR 54,000 crore (US$ 8.43 billion) 
annually_ 

As per the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) estimates, by 2029-30, the share of 

renewable energy generation would increase from 18% to 44%, while that of thermal 

is expected to reduce from 78% to 52%. 

The Government of India wants to develop a 'green city' in every state of the 

country, powered by renewable energy. The 'green city' will mainstream 

environment-friendly power through solar rooftop systems on all its houses, solar 

parks on the city's outskirts, waste to energy plants and electric mobility-enabled 
public transport systems. 
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During the year under review, there has not been any change in the authorized share 

capital of your Company. The authorized share capital of your Company as of 
March 31, 2022 was INR 50,00,00,000 divided into 5,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 
10/- each. 

(b) Issued and Paid-up Share Capital 

During the period under review, there has not been any change in the issued and 

paid-up share capital of your Company. The issued and paid-up equity share capital 
of your Company as of March 31, 2022 was INR 1,61,69,840 divided into 16,16,984 
equity shares of INR 10/- each. 

(c) Fully Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Fully Compulsorily 

Convertible Debentures of your Company. The quantum of FCCDs was INR 
75,92,82,000 divided into 7,59,282 FCCDs of INR 1000/- each. 

(d) Issue of 3,370 Green Bonds/ Non-Convertible Debentures of INR 10,00,000/­
each on private placement basis 

During the year under review, for the purpose of refinancing of existing financial 

indebtedness of the Company availed from the existing lenders and promoter loans, 
payment of capital creditors and various purpose in the normal course of business, 

your Company had issued and allotted 3,370 Secured, Redeemable, Rated, Listed, 
Non-Convertible Debentures ('NCDs') of the face value of INR 10,00,000/- each on 

March 2, 2022 aggregating up to INR 3,37,00,00,000/ - on a private placement basis 

with 6.75 % p.a.p.q. coupon rate for a tenure of 2 years 363 days. Further, Catalyst 

Trusteeship Limited is the Debenture Trustee to the issue. 
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Further, NCDs are secured by way of mortgage/ charge against certain assets of the 

Company and the asset cover in respect of these NCDs exceed hundred percent of 
the principal amount of the said NCDs as of March 31, 2022. 

(e) Listing of Non-Convertible Debentures on Stock Exchange 

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company were listed on the wholesale debt 
market (WDM) of BSE Ltd on March 7, 2022. 

(f) Credit Rating 

The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was as follows: 

Rating Agency Type of Instrument Credit Rating 
CRISIL Ratings Limited Non-Convertible CRISIL AAA/Stable 

Debentures 

Disclosures under SEBI Operational Circular: 

Large Corporate Disclosure 

As the maturity of NCDs is for a period of more than one year and have a credit 

rating of CRISIL AAA/Stable, the Company would be considered as a 'Large 

Corporate' as per SEBI1s Operational Circular dated August 10, 2021. Further, there 

was no incremental borrowing by the Company during the financial year ended 
March 31, 2022. 

Further disclosures applicable to green debt securities under SEBI Operational 
Circular is attached herewith as Annexure I. 

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy): 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted Vigil Mechanism 

Policy that enables the directors and group employees to bring to the attention of the 

management any issue which is perceived to be in violation of or in conflict with the 

fundamental business principles of the Company. 
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The Vigil Mechanism provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of 

persons who use the Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Board of Directors 

of the Company or any authorized person in appropriate or exceptional cases. 

The Vigil Mechanism Policy is uploaded on the webpage of the Company at 

https:// avaadaenergy.com/fermi/img/ Annexure%204%20%20Vigil%20Mechanism 
%20Policy-FSPL.pdf 

Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (Fair Disclosure Policy ): 

During the year under review, pursuant to Regulation 8(1) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015) read 
with Regulation 51(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, the Company has established the Code of Practices and Procedures for 

Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information to ensure timely, fair and 

adequate disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information ("UPSI"). The Fair 

Disclosure Policy is uploaded on the webpage of the Company at 

https: / / avaadaenergy.com/fenni/ img/ Fair%20Disclosure%20policy Fermi %20Sol 
ar.pdf 

Policy on Preservation and Archival of Documents: 

Further, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the Company has adopted the Policy on 

Preservation and Archival of Documents to aid the employees in handling the 

documents efficiently either in physical form or in electronic form. It covers various 

aspects on preservation of the documents, archival of the same and safe 

disposal/ destruction of the documents. The Policy on Preservation and Archival of 
Documents is uploaded on the webpage of the Company at 

https://avaadaenergy.com /fermi/img/Preservation%20and %20Archival%20of%20 
Documents Fermi%20Solar.pdf 
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The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 
and any amendments thereto. 

Auditors and Auditors' Report: 

M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the Chartered Accountants (FRN: 015125N) were 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the annual general meeting 

held on September 28, 2020 for a term of five (5) years i.e. from financial year 2020-21 
to financial year 2024-25 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon 

between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors at a later 
date. 

The notes to the financial statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self­

explanatory. Further, there are no reservations, adverse remarks or qualifications in 

the Auditors' Report and therefore do not call for any clarification or comments 

under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013. The Auditor's Report is enclosed with 
the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

Internal Auditor: 

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Acquisory Consulting LLP as 
the Internal Auditors of the Company to conduct the Internal Audit for the Financial 

Year 2021-22, and the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for 
conducting internal audit was approved by the Board of Directors. 

Cost Auditor: 

Your Company has re-appointed M/ s HCB & Co, the Cost Accountants (Firm 

Registration No.000525) to conduct audit of cost records of the Company for the year 

ended on March 31, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 
2014. 
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The Cost Audit Report for the year 2020-21 was filed within the due date with the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs. The Company has maintained the cost accounts and 
records in accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Further, M/s HCB & Co, the Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000525) have 

been reappointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company for Financial Year 2022-23. 
As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the 
cost auditor is subject to ratification by the members of the Company. 

Secretarial Auditor: 

Your Company has appointed M/s Deepak A. Variya & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number: 10111) as the Secretarial Auditor to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Amendment Rules, 2020. The Secretarial Audit report in Form MR-3 is attached 

herewith as Annexure II. There were no qualifications, reservation or adverse 

remarks given by the Secretarial Auditor in the Secretarial Audit Report of the 
Company. 

Further, M/ s Deepak A. Variya & Co., Practicing Company Secretary have been 
reappointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company by the Board for Financial 
Year 2022-23. 

Alteration of Article of Association of The Company: 

During the year under review, to safeguard the interests of the debentureholders 

including right to appoint the nominee director in accordance with terms agreed 

under the debenture trust deed executed with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, new 
Articles 25A and Article 53A were inserted to incorporate the agreed terms. 
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Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo: 

As the Company is not engaged in the manufacturing activity through itself, the 

provisions of Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules 2013 regarding disclosure of particulars with respect to 

conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to your 
Company. 

Further, there is no foreign exchange earnings and foreign exchange outgo on 
account of import of services is INR 0.019 million. 

Change in Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

There has been no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the present directors of the Company are Mr. Ravi Kant Verma and 
Mr. Prashant Choubey. 

Further, Ms. Shweta Mankar was appointed as the Company Secretary and 

Compliance Officer of the Company in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 

6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with 
effect from December 23, 2021. 

Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors and Attendance of Directors: 

Ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period viz. on July 
30, 2021, September 18, 2021, October 14, 2021, December 8, 2021, December 23, 2021, 

February 1, 2022, February 17, 2022, February 18, 2022, March 2, 2022 and March 29, 

2022 and the intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period 
prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013: 
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Directors Mr. Prashant Choubey Mr. Ravi Kant Verma 

Date of 
Board Meetings 

July 30, 2021 Attended Attended 
September 18, 2021 Attended Attended 

October 14, 2021 Attended Attended 
December 8, 2021 Attended Attended 
December 23, 2021 Attended Attended 
February 1, 2022 Attended Attended 
February 17, 2022 Attended Attended 
February 18, 2022 Attended Attended 
March 2, 2022 Attended Attended 
March 29, 2022 Attended Attended 
% of attendance 100% 100% 

Board Evaluation: 

Since the Company was a private limited company during the period from April 1, 
2021 till March 31, 2022, the disclosure on annual evaluation of the performance was 
not applicable to the Company. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of The Board of Directors: 

Your Company had constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was as follows: 

1. Mr. Prashant Choubey 

2. Mr. Ravi Kant Verma 

One (1) meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of 

Directors was held during the year viz on June 7, 2021 and the attendance of the 
Committee members was as under: 
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Directors 
Date of 
CSR Committee 
Meetings 

June 7, 2021 

% of attendance in person 
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Mr. Prashant Mr. Ravi Kant Verma 
Choubey 

Attended Attended 
100% 100% 

Further, pursuant to the amendment to the prov1s1ons of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, if the 

annual CSR obligation of any Company does not exceed Rupees Fifty Lakhs, the 
Company would no longer fall under the criteria for constituting and continuing 
with the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee_ Thus, the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee of the Board was dissolved by the Board at their meeting 
held on September 18, 2021 and it was decided that the functions earlier delegated to 

the said Committee would be discharged by the Board going forward. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 vide the 

Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 read with the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, the Company had adopted 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy on April 1, 2021. The CSR Policy is 

pasted on the webpage of the Company and the weblink to the same is 

https:/ / avaadaenergy.com/ fermi/ img/ Annexure%205 %20-%20CSR %20Policy­
FSPL. pdf 

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives: 

The Board of Directors had granted its approval to undertake its Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) activities through Avaada Foundation, Avaada Group Section 8 

Company incorporated for the purpose pursuant to the collaboration agreement for 
Corporate Social Responsibility activities executed between A vaada Foundation, 

Avaada Ventures Private Limited and Avaada Energy Private Limited and Deed of 

Adherence executed between Avaada Foundation, Avaada Ventures Private 
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Limited, Avaada Energy Private Limited and the Subsidiaries of Avaada Energy 
Private Limited. 

In accordance with the proposed CSR Action Plan during the Financial Year 2021-22, 

A vaada Foundation undertook the social development activities in Satara, Solapur, 

Buldhana, Amaravati and Chalisgaon Districts of Maharashtra State in the area of 

preventive health care as under: 

Sr Lives 
No Focus Areas CSR Programs Locations Touched 

Food grains & ration support 
Satara, Solapur, 

to daily wages workers & 
Buldhana and 2,100 

marginal community during 
Amaravati Districts, families 

second wave of Corona 
Maharashtra 

Pandemic 

Preventive 
Distribution of safety masks & 7,000 Safety 

sanitizers in rural community Masks &350 
1. Healthcare/ 

to make the society aware Chalisgaon District, Liter 
Covidcare 

about prevention and Maharashtra Sanitizer 
Support 

spreading of corona cases in distributed 

the community in rural 

community 

Setting up of Covid Care 
Solapur and 

Center for the prevention & 125 Covid 
Amaravati Districts, 

better treatment of corona patients 
Maharashtra 

affected patients 

The annual report on CSR activities undertaken is attached herewith as Annexure III. 

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities 
provided: 

Your Company is engaged in prov1s10n of infrastructural facilities, therefore 

exempted from compliance of provisions of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules thereunder. 
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Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties: 

All the arrangements or transactions with related parties were in compliance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. There were no 

material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties during the 

period under review. 

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report: 

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the Financial 

Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2022 to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of this report which effects the financial position of the Company. 

Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (Fair Disclosure Policy): 

There are no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts 

or tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations at 

present and in future. 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards: 

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings and General Meetings as 

applicable to the Company. 

Annual Return: 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 

draft Annual Return as on March 31, 2022 in Form No. MGT-7, is available on the 

Company's webpage and can be accessed at the we blink: 

https: // avaadaenergy.com/fermi/ 
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The Company is managing its risks through well-defined internal financial controls 

and there are no risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. The 

Company has formulated entry level controls for risk management in the Company. 
It identifies the components of risk evaluation and the principles based on which the 
controls have been formulated. 

Internal Control System: 

Your Company has in place adequate internal control system with reference to 
adherence to policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of business, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of 
reliable financial information. 

Directors' Responsibility Statement: 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that: 

1. in the preparation of annual accounts for the period ended March 31, 2022, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material 

departures from the same; 

2. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of the profit 
of the Company for that period; 

3. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 
4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 

5. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
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support received from members and stakeholders towards the growth and 
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Date : May 30, 2022 
Place : Noida 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prashant Choubey 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 
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Annexure I 

Disclosures applicable to Green Debt Securities under SEBI Operational Circular 

1. List of project(s) and/ or asset(s) to which proceeds of the Green Debt Securities have 
been allocated/invested including a brief description of such project(s): 

The amount of INR 3,370 millions raised by issuance of green debt securities has been 

fully allocated for re-financing of "Eligible Green Projects" as defined in the Green Bond 
framework i.e. for existing 80 MW solar electricity generation facilities/ plant of the 

Company operational in the State of Maharashtra wherein 100% of electricity generated 
from the said plant is derived from solar energy resources. Thus, the Company has 

utilized the proceeds from the issue of green debt securities viz. non-convertible 

debentures ('NCDs') for the purpose for which these proceeds have been raised. 

2. Environmental impact of the Project(s) in which the proceeds from issue of Green 
Bonds have been invested: 

The said Solar Plant had a significant impact in terms of avoidance of emissions of 

carbon dioxide (CO2) apart from other air pollutants associated with energy generation. 
The CO2 emission reductions on account of said Solar Plant of the Company during the 
Financial Year (FY) 2021-22 are shared below: 

Sr.No Project Type Capacity Annual Generation Projected emission 
(in MW) (MWh/year) reduction (CO2/year) 

1 Solar PV Project 80 1,51,849 1,41,280 

3. Methods and the key underlying assumptions used in preparation of the 
performance indicators and metrics and compliance with globally accepted 
standard(s) for measurement of the environmental impact: 

All the data presented in the above table is based on the monthly factual data collection. 

For CO2 eq emission reduction, combined margin grid emission factor is taken from 
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CO2 baseline database version 17, October 2021, published by Central Electricity 
Authority (CEA), Government of India. 

The Company follows the International Financial Corporation (IFC) performance 
standards, 2012 to comply with environmental and social management system. 

Date : May 30, 2022 
Place : Noida 

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors ~ 

& ~;~ 
Prashant Choubey Ravi Kant Verma 
Director Director 
DIN: 08072225 DIN: 07299159 
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Annexure- II 

OS DEEPAK A. VARIYA & CO. 
Practising Company Secretary 

Deepok A Variyo (B.Com., F.C.S.) LLB 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETAIUAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE fINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31•1 MARCH, 2022 

[Pursuant to sec/ ion 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and RuleNo.9 of the Companies 
(Appoi11tme11t and Renmn~mlion Personnel)Rules, 2014) 

To, 
The Members, 
FERMI SOLARFARMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40106DL2013FTC248848 
Registered office:910/19, Suryakiran, 
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi -110001, India 

We have conducted the secretarial audil ,)f the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by FERMI SOLARFARMS PRIVATE 
LIMITED (hereinafter called "the comp;my"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
t11at provided us a reasonable basis tor evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory 
compliances and expressi ng my opinion :hereon. 

Based on o ur verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 
lhe Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during ilie conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report iliat in our opinion, the company has, during U1e audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 3151 March, 2022 (" Audit Period") complied 
with the statutory provisions listed herel'11der and also that the Co!npany has proper board­
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: · 

We have examined the books, papers, ·minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3151 March, 2022 
according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) a nd the rules made there under; 
(i i) The Securities Con tracts (Regulation) /\c t, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

thereunder; 

(iii) The Deposilori.es Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the 
Company during Audit Period) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed unde r the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, ·1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the 
Company: 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 20·1s; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer /\gents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998; 

(vi) In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, the below­
mentioned other law is specifically applicable to the Company: 
a) Elech·icity Act, 2003; 

We have also examined compliance wilh the applicable clauses of the fo llowing: 

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and 
General Meeting (SS-2) issued by The Institu te of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited . 

Page 2 of 4 



During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We have relied on information/ records produced by the Company during the course of my 
audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 

We further report that 

Board of Directors of the Company is duly constih1ted. There were no changes m the 
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and in case of shorter 
notice, consent of board members was obtained and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period Company has issued and allotted 3370 rated, 
listed, secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of a face value of JNR. 10,00,000/­
each aggregating to INR. 3,37,00,00,000/- on a Private Placement basis. 

We further report that during the audit period there were no fo11owing specific 
events/actions having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

(i) Public/ preferential issue of shares / sweat equity, etc. 
(ii) Redemption/ buy-back of securities 

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies 
Act, 2013(The Company being a private company is exempt from compliance of the 
provisions of Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013). 

(iv) Merger/ amalgamation/ reconstruction, etc. 
(v) Foreign technical collaborations. 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is a1mexed as ANNEXURE-1, 
and it forms an integral part of this report. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 301h May, 2022 
UDfN: F008830D000437491 
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ANNEXURE-1 

To, 
The Members, 
FERMI SOLARFARMS PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40106DL2013FfC248848 
Registered office Addrcss:910/19, Suryakiran, 
Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi -110001, 
Delhi, India 

Our report of even date is lo be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The 
verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on lest basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted/ will conduct the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th May, 2022 

UDIN: f008830D000437491 
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Annexure- III 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as prescribed under 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The CSR policy of the Company was adopted by the Board on August 4, 2020 and it 
focuses on Education, Empowerment, Environment and Health and other CSR activities 

and the said policy has been amended by the Board on March 31, 2021 effective from 

April 1, 2021 pursuant to the amended provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment 
Rules, 2021. 

The main objective of the CSR Policy is to lay down guidelines and make CSR as one of 

the key business drivers for sustainable development of the environment and the 

society in which the Company operates in particular and the overall development of the 
global community at large. 

2. D issolution of CSR Committee of the Board: 

The details of the composition of the CSR Committee of the Board and members of the 
meetings held during the year is as follows: 

Sr. Name of Directors Designation Number of Number of 
No. meetings of meetings of 

CSR CSR 
Committee Committee 
held during attended 
the year during the 

year 
1 Mr. Ravi Kant Verma Non-Executive Director 1 1 
2 Mr. Prashant Chou bey Non-Executive Director 1 1 
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Pursuant to the amendment to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 read with the Companies (Corporate 

Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, if the annual CSR obligation of 

any Company does not exceed Rupees Fifty Lakhs, the Company would no longer fall 

under the criteria for constituting and continuing with the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee. It was thus decided to dissolve the said Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee of the Board and the functions earlier delegated to the said 
Committee would continue to be discharged by the Board going forward. 

3. The web-link for CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed 
on the website of the company: 

https: // avaadaenergy .com/ fer mi/ img/ Annextu-e % 205 % 20-% 20CSR %20Policv FSPL. pdf 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, if applicable (attach the report): 

The Company at present is not required to carry out impact assessment in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014. 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required 
for set off for the financial year, if any 

The Company does not have any amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule 
(3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 71.82 million 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 1.44 
million 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years: Nil 
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(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): INR 1.44 million 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount Unspent (in INR) 
Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund 
Spent for to Unspent CSR Account specified under Schedule VII as per 
the as per section 135(6). second proviso to section 135(5). 
Financial 
Year 2021-22 
(INR in 
millions) 

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of 
transfer Fund transfer 

1.5 NIL N.A. N.A. NIL N.A. 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 
Applicable 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 
year: 

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Name of the Item from the Local Location of the project Amoun Mode Mode of implementation -
Project list of activities area of Through implementing 

in schedule VII (Yes/ spent imple agency 
to the Act No State District or thE mentat Name CSR 

project ion - registration 
INR ir Direct number 

million (YesjN 
15) o) 

Food grains & Preventive No Maharashtra Satara, 1.12 No Avaada CSR000020 
ration support Healthcare/ Solapur, Foundation 25 
to daily wages Covidcare Buldhana 
workers & Support and 
marginal Amaravati 
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2 

3 

community 
during second 
wave of 
Corona 
Pandemic 
Distribution of Preventive 
safety masks & Healthcare/ 
sanitizers in Covidcare 
rural Support 
community to 
make the 
society aware 
about 
prevention 
and spreading 
of corona cases 
in the 
community 
Setting up of Preventive 
Covid Care Healthcare/ 
Center for the Covidcare 
prevention & Support 
better 
treatment of 
corona 
affected 
patients 

Yes 

No 
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CIN: U40 I 06DL20 I 3FTC248848 

Maharashtra 

Maharashtra 
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Districts, 

:Chalisgaon 0.14 No 
District 

Solapur & 0.23 No 
Amaravati 
Districts, 
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Avaada CSR000020 
Foundation 25 

Avaada CSR000020 
Foundation 25 

( d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: INR 0.007 million 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

(£) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR. 1.50 million 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 

Sr. No. Particulars Amounts (INR in millions) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 1.44 

company as per 
section 135(5) 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1.50 
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(iii) 

(iv) 

(v) 
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Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)- 0.06 
(i)] 
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 0.00 
programs or activities of the previous financial 
vears, if any 
Amount available for set 
financial years[(iii)-(iv)] 

off in succeeding 0.06 
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?10/ 19. S11ryakirnn. 

KaslUrba Gandhi /\•larg. 
New Delhi - I 10001 

T: +0 11-68172100 
E: rc11111i..1JIIII fm m, u ,I\ .1.ul:1 .,;1l111 

,, ,, \\ , :I \ :t ;1d;H·lll"I :.!' .t·um /fn mil 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 
preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable 

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the 
asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A. 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 
capital asset is registered, their address etc.: N.A. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 
address and location of the capital asset). N.A. 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average 
net profit as per section 135(5) : 

The Company has spent its CSR obligation in full during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

Place: Noida 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
~~ ~ · 

Ravi Kant Verma 
Director 
DIN: 07299159 
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Prashant Choubey 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Chartere<l Accountants 
7'" Floor, Bui!dmg 10, rower B 
DLF Cyb,:r C1ty Complex 
DLF City PMase- II 
Gurugram • T 22 002 
Haryana, !ndia 

Tel; +91124 679 2000 
Fax: +91 124 679 2012 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fermi Solarfarms Private Limited ("the 

Company"), which compnse the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (Including Other Comprel1ens,ve Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement 

of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (together referred to as "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informat1ori and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements g,ve the information required by t.he Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

in the manner so require(! and g,ve a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, of the state of affairs ot the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total 
comprehensive Income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the f1nanc1al statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143( 10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further described m the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 

our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (JCAI) together with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the finanual state,nents under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 

made thereunder, and we have fuifillecl our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Eth!cs. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our profess,onal Judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no 
key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Dinxtors 1s responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information ,ncluded In the Board's report, but does not include the 
financial staten1ents and our auditor's report thereon. 

• Our oplnion on the f1nancia! statements does not cover the other information .and we do not 
express any form of assurance concius1on thereon, 
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes mamtenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

wl1o!e are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these f1nanc1al statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mIsrepresentatIons, or the 
override of internal control. 
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Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with thern all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2022 from being appo111ted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over fi11anc1al reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Olli" separate Report 

in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 

operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report ,n accordance with 

the requirements of section 197( 16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best 

of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been 

paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence, reporting under this section 

Is not applicable to the Company. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. Refer note 38(b) to the financial statement. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

Iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 28(b) to the financial statement, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, wl1ether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed ,n the note 28(b) to the financial statement, no funds have been received by 
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that tl1e 
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified ,n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of tl1e Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 l(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ancl t1as not 
proposed final dividend for the year. 

ask ii) 

artered 
untant 
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2. As requi red by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement o n the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm 's Registrat ion No. 015125N) 

-"'~"~ 
~ 

Vikas Khurana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

(UDIN: 22503760AJWSCE1923) 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph l(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Fermi Solarfarms Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of ,ts business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company 1s internal financial controls over financla! 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing ancl evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial contra! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that ( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardlng prevention or tirr1e!y detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 111atenal 

,,.-c:::C:~:l:elcc~t, on the financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of co llusion or improper management override of controls, materia l m isstatem ents 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. A lso, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financia l controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of I nternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 015125N) 

Vikas Khurana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

(UDIN: 22503760AJWSCE1923) 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date) 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books 
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we state that 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 1ncludin9 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(B) As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) 
of the Order Is not applicable. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the 
Management in accordance with a program of verification, which in our opinion, provides 
for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no rnaterlal discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification, 

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed for land on which building is 
constructed and register sale deed provided to us, we report that, title in respect of self­
constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties disclosed in the 
financial statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment, are held in the name of 
the Company as at balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) during the year. 

(e) No proceedings t1ave been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company 
as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable 
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verification of inventories applicable, when compared with books of accounts. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us 1 at any given point of time of 
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital from banks or financial 
institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(iii) (a) The Company has not provided any loan, advances i11 nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year. Further1 the Company along with three other fellow 
subsidiaries has issued non-convertible debentures during the year aggregating to INR 
14,400 million, for which the Company along with other three fellow subsidiaries have 
provided guarantee on jointly and severally basis to the debenture trustees. Details are as 
given below: 

i Loans 

Aggregate amount 
granted I provided 
during the year: 

- Others Nil 

Balance outstanding as 
at balance sheet date in 
respect of above cases: 

- Others Nil 

--

Advances 
nature 
loans ---·~-----

Nil 

Nil 

__ (Amounti~ INR_million 
in Guarantees on I Security 
of behalf of fellow 
_ _L ~_u __ bsidiaries ___ --'-----~ 

11,030 Nil 

11,030 Nil 

The Company has not provided any loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year. 

(b) During the year the guarantees provided to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's 
interest. Further, the Company has not made any investments and has not provided any 
loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any other entity during the year. 

(c) The Company has not provided any loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(1ii)(c), (d), (e) and (f) is 
not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of guarantees provided, as applicable_ Further, the Company has not 
granted any loans, made investments or securities to any other entity during the year. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be deposits. 
Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable_ 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013_ We have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost 
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, 
pnma facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. 
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete. 
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(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) Undisputed statutoi-y clues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, 
duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have 
generally been regularly depositecl by It with the appropriate authorities though there has 
been a delay in respect of remittance of Income-tax dues. 

We were informed that the provisions of Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident 
Fund, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues ln arrears as 
at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2022. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or government or any government authority. 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company 
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were 
obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on 
short-term basis have, pnma facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes 
by the Company. 

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year 
and hence, report111g under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and 
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, moneys 
raised by way of debt instruments during the year have been, prima facie, applied by the 
Company for the purposes for which tl1ey were raised. Company has not raised moneys 
by way of Initial public offer or further public offer during the year. 

(b) The Company has made private placement of non-convertible debentures during the year 
For such issuance of non-convertible debentures, the Company has complied with the 
requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have 
been, prima fac,e, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the 
funds were raised. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares (fully or part!y or optionally) during the year. 
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(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to 
the elate of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company clunng the year and up to the date of this report. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opmion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company, or persons 
connected with such directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) (c) and (d) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xvii) 

(xviii) 

(xix) 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no core investment 
company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report incl1cat1ng that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the lJalance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the aucl1l report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
l1abil1ties falling clue vvithin a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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Haskins & Sells 

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibi lity 
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund 
specified in Schedu le VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the 
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accord ingly, report ing under 
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 015125N) 

Vikas Khurana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

( UDIN: 22503760AJWSCE 1923) 



56

Fermi Solarforms Prirnte Limitctl 
CIN - ll-UI I 116DL20 IJFTC'2-IK!WI 
Bnh111ce sheet as at l\larch JI . 2022 
(All amnlmts in INR millil>llS llllbs Sl,Hcd otherwise) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Prope1ty. plant and c•quipmcnt 
Financial assets 

Other financial assets 
Non-cun-cnt tax assets (net) 
O1her non-cuiTent assets 
Total non-current assets (A) 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assets 

Investments 
Trade rt-ccivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other financial assets 

Other cmTent assets 
Total current assets (B) 

Total assets (A+B) 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Equity share capital 
Instruments entirely equity in nature 
Other equity 
Total equity (C) 

LIABILITIES 

Non current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Borrowings 
Deferred tax liability (net) 
Other non-current liabilities 
Provisions 
Total non-current liabilities (D) 

Current liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

B01rnwings 
Trade payables 
Total outstanding dut-s of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Other cmTent liabilities 
Provisions 
Total current liabilities (E) 

Total equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 

See accompanying notes forming pa11 of the financial statements 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells :;;:m~TOJJ 
.----=:::: 

Vikas Khurann 
Partner 
Date: May 30. 2022 
Place: Gurugram 

Shwcta Manik Mankar 
Company Secretary 

Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 

Note 

3 
4 

4(a) 
5 
6 

7 
8 

S(a) 
8(b) 
8(c) 
8(d) 
8(e) 

9 

10 
11 
12 

13 
I 3(a) 

14 
15 
16 

17 
I 7(a) 

I 7(b) 
I 7(b) 

18 
19 

1-43 

As at 
l\larch 3 I, 2022 

4.352.84 

474.17 
12.46 
p _n 

4,851.69 

3.02 

193.85 
173. 13 

8.20 
10.72 
0.40 

389.32 

5.241.01 

16. 17 
759.28 
396.86 

1.172.31 

3.458. IO 
115.86 
297.35 

0. 18 
3 871.49 

170.55 

0.1 1 
10.66 
15.89 

197.21 

S 241.01 

Asat 
March 3 I, 2021 

4.526.70 

:!04.53 
9.44 

11 .86 
4.752.53 

2.70 

226.67 
196.55 
159.25 
38.37 
12.95 

1.09 
637.58 

S 390.11 

16. 17 
759.28 
413.24 

1,188.69 

3,637.41 
64.94 

312.17 
0.10 

4,014.62 

163.48 

6.61 
16.71 

186.80 

S 390.11 

For and on behalf of board of directors 

Prashnnt C11011bey 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 

Ra,•i Kant Verma 
Dirt-ctor 
DIN: 07299159 

Place: Noida · 
~cM~~ TI 
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Fermi Solarfarms Pri\';1te Limited 
CIN- U-I0I06DU0l3FTC2-l!l!l-l!I 
Statement of Prnlil and Loss for the year l'nded ~larch 3 I. 2022 
( All :rnwunts in INR millions unkss stated othc•rwisc) 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from operations 
01hcr income 
Total Income (A) 

Expenses 
Employee bcnelits expense 
Finance costs 
Deprecia1ion expenses 
Olhcr expenses 
Total expenses (B) 

Profit before tax (C=A-B) 

Tax Expense: 
C111i-cnt Tax 
Dcfc1Ted tax clrnrge 

Total tax expenses (D) 

Profit after tax (E=C-D) 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 

Re-measurement o f liabilities/assets 
Income tax e ffect of re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 

Other comprehensive incomc/(loss) for the year, net of tax (F) 

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (G=E+F) 

Earnings per share: 
(a) Basic (INR) 
(b) Diluted (INR) 

Sec accompanying notes fanning part of the linancial statements 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 

i~~~ 

Note 

20 
2 1 

22 
23 
24 
25 

14 

26 

1-43 

Vikas Khurana 
Partner 

Shwcta Manik Mankar 
Company Secretary 

Date: May 30. 2022 
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida 

Date: May 30, 2022 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

675.38 
38.51 

713.89 

3.48 
395.50 
180.59 
55.41 

634.98 

78.91 

50.92 

50.92 

27.99 

27.99 

0.36 
0.36 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

727.26 
67.85 

795. 11 

2.37 
400.73 
180.51 
77.55 

661.16 

133.95 

4 1. 14 

41.14 

92.81 

92.81 

1.20 
1.20 

for and on behalf of board of directors 

Prashant Choubc)' 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 

Ravi Kant Verma 
Director 
DIN: 07299159 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30, 2022 
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Fermi Solarfarms Pri\'alc Limilcd 
CIN - ll-lOIO<,DL20DFTC?-188-18 
S1a1cmcnt of Cash Flows for the ~·car ended i\larch 31. 2022 
( All ;1111ounls in INR millions unkss sl,llcd (1lhcrwisc) 
Particulars 

:\. Cash tlow from operating acti\•ities 
Prolil bclorc' tax 
Adjustments 
Finance Cosl 
Depreciation expense 
Rcw nuc from goods and service tax c laim 
lnlcrcsl income on bank deposits 
Prolil on sale or investment 
Unwinding interest income on goods and service lax claim 
Gain on foreign exchange 
Amo1tisalion of Project subsidy (Viability Gap Funding) 
Liabiliry no longer required 
Gain on change in lair value of investment measured at FVTPL 
Gratuity expense and Leave cncashmcnt 
Operating profit before working capital changes 
Adjustment for working capital changes 

Changes in inventories 
Changes in tra<le reccivabk's 
Changes in other linancial assets 
Chang~-s in other assets 
Changes in other liabilities 
Chang<.-s in trade payables 
Change in provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Income tax paid (net of income tax relund) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

B. Cash Flow from investing activities 
Capital expenditure of property, plant and equipment (including capital advances) 
Proceeds from sale of investments in mutual fund 
Investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds from bank deposits 
Investment in bank deposits 
Interest received on bank deposits 
Interest received on goods and service tax claim receivables 
Net cash generated /(used) in investing activities 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceed from non-current borrowings 
Repayment of non-current bo1Towings 
Proceed from cu1Tcnt borrowings 
Repayment of cun-ent borrowings 
Interest and other bmTowing cost paid 
Payment for proct--ssing fees of non-current borrowing 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+c) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks in current account 
Bank deposits 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Sec accompanying notes fonning pait of the financial statements 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells CJ:;:"; ~ 
Yikas Khnrana 
Partner 
Date: May 30. 202 
Place: Gurugram 

Shwcta Mauik Manknr 
Company Secretary 

Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 

For the ~·cnr ended fo,· the ~·car ,•1ulcd 
i\larch 31. 2022 March 31. 2021 

78.91 IJJ.95 

395.50 381.12 
180.60 180.51 

(8.15) (23.52) 
(8.35) ( 10.98) 
(6.54) (4.93) 

( 16.74) (14.68) 
(0.16) (22.48) 
(6.67) (6.67) 
(0.05) 

(0.88) 
0.2 1 0,14 

608.56 611.58 

(032) (0.45) 
2.70 (0.31) 

11.75 (20.8 1) 
( 1.65) 73.88 
(0.82) 202.95 
4.38 (3.49) 
(0.13) (0.09) 

624.47 863.26 
(3.02) 11 .85 

621.45 875.11 

(4.76) ( 1.64) 
810.68 1,690.92 

(577.47) (1,755.32) 
458.86 291.90 
(709.04) (330.03) 

9.54 10.30 
16.74 14.68 
4.55 (79.19) 

4,056.96 841.68 
(4,4 10.1 1) (1,269.36) 

750.58 37.59 
(721.0 I) (31.43) 
(284.17) (310.08) 

( 4.3 7) 
(612.12) (731,60) 

13.88 64.32 
159.25 94.93 
173. 13 159.25 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

173.13 16.58 
142.67 

173.13 159.25 

For and on bl'half of board of directors 

Prashant Choubcy Ravi Kant Verma 
Director 
DIN: 080722 99159 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 3 0. 2022 
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Fermi Solarfanns Prh·atc Limited 
C'IN - ll-lOI06DUOIJFTC2-IHH-18 
Statement of clrnnj!cs in c11uit~· for the year ended i\larch 31. 2022 
(All amnu111s in INR millions unless slalcd nlhcrwisc) 

(a) Equit)' share capit:11 

Particulars 

Balance as at April I , 2020 

Changcs in Equity Share Capital due 10 prior period errors 

Restated balance al 1hc beginning of the previous rcporling. period 

Change in cx1ui1y share capital (refer note 10) 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 

Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting period 

Change in cquily share capital (refer note 10) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 

Particulars 

Balance as at April I , 2020 

Movement during the year 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 

Movement during the year 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

(c) Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April I, 2020 

Profit for the year 

Olher comprehensive income. nel o f tax* 
Balance as at March 31, 2021 

Prolil for the year 

Adjustment for repayment of loan 

Other comorehensive income. net o f tax* 
Transfer to Debenture n:demotion reserve 
Debenture rcdemolion reserve created 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Retained Securities 
Debenture 

earnings premium 
Redemption 

Reserve 

46.24 25.94 -
92.79 - -

- -
139.03 25.94 -
27.98 -

- - -
- - -

1167.0ll - -
- 167.0 1 

- 25.94 167.01 
*Expressed in absolute -Other comprehensive income, net of tax INR (- 1,448) (March 202 1: INR 3,920.00) 

See accompanying notes fonning part of the financial statements 1-43 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells J; :,-~~ 
Vikas Khurann 
Partner 
Date: May 30. 2022 
Place: Gurugram 

Shweta Manik Mankar 
Company Secretary 

Place: Noida 
Date: May 30, 2022 

Number Amount 
16,16.984 16.17 

- -
16,16,984 16. 17 

- -
16, 16,984 16.17 

- -
16,16,984 16.17 

- -
16,16,984 16.17 

Number Amount 

75,92,82,000 759.28 

- -
75,92,82,000 759.28 

- -
75,92,82,000 759.28 

Equity component on 
interest free loan Total amount 

from related party 

248.27 320.45 

- 92.79 

- -
248.27 413.24 

27.98 

(44.36) (44.36) 

- -
- (1 67.01 ) 

167.01 
203.91 396.86 

For and on behalf of board of directors 

Prnshnnt Choubcy 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 

Ravi Kant Verma 
Director 
DIN: 07299159 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 
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Fermi Solarfarms Prirnte Limited 
CIN - U-U1106DL2013FTC2481Wl 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended !\larch 31, 2022 
(All ,1111ou111s in INR millions unless staled otherwise) 

I. Corporate information 

Fermi Solarforms Private Limited (""lhe Company'") is a private rnmpany domicilc<l in India and incorporated on February 28. 20 13 under the provisions 
or the Companies Ael applicable in India. The Company becmne wholly owned subsidiary of Avaada Energy Privaie Limited (formerly known as Girirnj 
Rcncwablcs Private Limited) w.c.r. August 2. 2019. The registered office or 1hc Company is localed at New Delhi and engaged in lhe business or 
generation of solar power. The Company had commissioned SOM W solar power project al Chalisgaon. Maharash1ra, on Apri l 14, 20 18. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
The financial s tatements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noti lied under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 20 13, read together with Rule 3 or the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting 
Stan<lards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry or Corporate Affairs. 

The financial statements have been prepare<l on the accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention. Historical cost is generally based 
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchage for goods and services. For aacounting policy on foir value refer note 2.2 (q). 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

a) Use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with Incl AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities and the disclosure or contingent liabilities, at the end or the reporting period. Although these 
estimates are based on the management's bes1 knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty aboul these assumptions and estimates could result in 
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabili1ies in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classilica1ion. 

An assel is treated as current when it is: 
- expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle; 
- held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
- cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at leas! twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assels are classified as non-current. 

A liability is treated as current when it is: 
- expected lo be settled in nonnal operating cycle; 
- held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- due to be settled within twelve months atier the reporting period; or 
- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement or the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabi lilies are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquis ition of assets for processing and their realization/settlement in cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company has identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities. 

c) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i r any. The cost of Property, plant 
and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than subsequently recoverable 
from tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and borrowing costs allributable to acquisition of 
qualifving assets up to the date the asset is readv for its intended use. 

Cost also includes replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-tcnn construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
When s ignificant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific 
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is perfonnecl, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if 
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in pro lit or loss as incurred. The value of !he expected 

ecommissioning of an asset after Its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition c · · · e met. 
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Fermi Solarforms Prirnte Limited 
CIN - U-10106DL2013HC2-U!8-18 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended !\larch 31, 2022 
(All amounls in INR millions unless slate.xi otherwise) 

Financial assels that are held within a business model whose objective is lo hold assels in order to collect conlrnctunl cash !lows: and the contractual terms 

or lhe instrument give rise on specilicd dates to cash nows that arc solely payments o r principal and in1crcs1 on the principal a111ount outstanding arc 
subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for linanc ial assc1s that arc designated as al FVTPL on initial recognition). 

Financi,il assets that arc held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting conlraclual cash !lows and selling financ ial assets; 

and the contrnclual terms or the instrument give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows tlrnt are solely payments o r principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding are subsequently measured al fair value through other comprehensive income (except for financial assets that arc designated as al 
FVTPL on initial recognition). 
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at lair value. 

The effective inte rest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost or a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. 
The effective inte rest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where 

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is recognised on an e ffective interest basis for financial assets other 
than those financial assets c lassified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the 'Other income'. 

The Company dcrecogniscs a financial asset when the contractual rights lo the cash nows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards or ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference 
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company assesses at each Bahmcc Sheet date whether a financial asset or a group or linancial assets is impaired. Ind AS I 09 requires expected credit 
losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises credit loss allowance at lifetime expected credit loss model for trade receivables. 

The Company's financial assets comprise of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivable, interest accrued on bank deposits, and other 
receivables. These assets arc measured subsequently al amortised cost. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial liabilities arc initially 
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that arc directly attributable lo the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities {other than financial liabilities at 

FVTPL) arc deducted from the fair value of the financial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or 
financial liabililies at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in ' finance costs'. 

Financial liabilities are c lassified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL all other financial liabilities 
arc subsequently measured al amortised cost using the effective interest rate method or at FVTPL. 

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cos I of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense and other directly 
attributable costs over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated contracted future cash payments through 

the expected Ii fc of the financial liability to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. The expected life or a financial liability can be a shorter period 
when the contractual arrangements inc lude prepayment provisions and when such prepayments are expected. 

Expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial liabilities other than !hose financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL. Interest expense is 
recognised in profit or loss and is included in the 'Finance costs' line item. 

Non-refundable fees and related direct costs associated with the origination of borrowings arc deferred and netted against borrowings and recognised 
using effective interest rate method. 

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations arc discharged, cancelled o r have expired. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecogniscd and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

The Company's financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. These liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised 
cost. 

_j) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will now to the Company and th measured, 
s of when the payment is being made. 
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Fermi Solnrfarms Prirnte Limited 
CIN - U40106DL2013FTC248848 
Notes to tinnncial statements for the ye;ir ended March 31 , 2022 
(All amounts in INR millions unless staled otherwise) 

Properly. plant and equipmc111 acquired and pul 10 use for project purpose and capitalised and depreciation thereon is included in the proj~'<.:I cost till the 
project is ready for its intended use. 

Ca1>ital work in progress (CWIP) 
Assets in the course of construction ,ire capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress (CWIP). At the poi111 when an asset is operating at 
manage111en1·s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation 
co111111cnces. Where an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site 10 ils fonner cond ition at the end of its 
useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or 
construction uoon comoletion and a corresoondin!! liabilitv is recognized. 

d) De-recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Pro lit and Loss when lhe asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful 
lives and methods of depreciation or property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adj usted prospectively, if appropriate. 

c) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight line basis so as lo expense the cost less residual value over their estimated useful 
lives based on a technical evaluation. The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of 
any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
Type of asset 
Buildings & Improvement (Solar Power Generating System) 
Plant and equipment (Solar Power Genernling System) 
Plant and equipment (Other) 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Useful lives 
25 years 
25 years 
15 years 
IO years 
5 years 
IO years 

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed al e.ich financial year end or whenever there are indicators for impainnenl, and adjusted 
prospectively. 

Changes in the expected useful li fe or the expected pauern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the 
depreciation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The depreciation expense on tangible assets is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure fonns part of carrying value of another asset. 

I) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their 
fair value al the dale of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are 1101 capitalised and the related e,cpenditure is reflected in 
orofit or loss in the oeriod in which the e,coenditurc is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets arc assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impainnenl whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and lhe amortisation 111e1hod for an intangible asset with a finite useful li fe are reviewed al least 
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pallern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset are considered lo modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation 
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure fonns part of carrying value of 
another asset. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impainnent at each year end either individually or at the cash generating 
unit level. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of lhe asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

~) Leases 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thai is, if lhe contract conv · · I the use of an 

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
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Fermi Solarfarms Prirntc Limited 
CIN • U40I06DL2013FTC2488-tll 
Notes to financial statements for the ~'Car ended i\larch 31 , 2022 
(A ll amounts in INR millions uniL-ss stated otherwise) 

As a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases and leases or low-value assets. The Company rccogni,:cs lease 
liabilities to make lease payment and right 10 use the underlying assets. 

i) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets al the commencement date or lease (i.e ., the d11tc o r underlying the asset is available for use). Right-ol~use 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement or lease liabilities. The cost o r 
right-ol~use assets includes the amount or lease liabilities recognised, initial d irect costs incurred, and lease payments ma de at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term: 

The cost re nects the exercise or a purchase option, as if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease tenn. 
The right-ol~use asset arc also subject to impainnent. 

ii) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the presenl value of lease payments to be made over the 
lease tenn. T he lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivables, variable lease 
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under res idual value guarantees. The lease paym ents also include the 
exercise price or a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments or penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease 
term reOects the Company exerc ising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense 
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
In calculating the present value or lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest 
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. AOcr the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to re nec1 the accretion or 
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured ir there is a modification, a change in 
the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., change to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

iii) Short-term leases and leases ok low-value assets 
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease tenn of 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to lease of o rfice equipment 
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-lcnn leases and leases or low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease tenn 

h) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, constrnclion or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period or time to get 
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost or the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange diffe rences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost less any interest income earned on temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets. 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per e ffective interest rale (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised cost o fa financial liability arter considering 
all the contractual tenns of the financial instrument. 

The Company detennines the amount or borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the 
period, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Company borrows generally and uses the funds 
for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are detennined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expendi tures on that 
asset. 

i) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contrac t that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of a nother entity. 

Financial asset 

Financ ial assets are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contrac tual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly al\ributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added lo the fa ir value o f the financial assets on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly al\ributable to the acquisition or financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement or Profit and Loss. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depe cation or the 
.....-:::::::=~.,., sets. 
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Sale of power 
Re\'enue arrangement 

The Company's revenue arrangement is based on long lenn PPA with its customer (Bangalore Ekctricily Supply Company Limited ("BESCOM")). As 
per the PPA the Company·s performance obligation is to supply solar power al the rales spcciliecl in the PPA. 

Recognition 
Revenue from sale or power is recognized when persuasive evidence or an arrangement exists, the fee is lixccl or determinable, solar energy kilowalts arc 
supplied and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is based on the solar energy kilowalts actually supplied to customers multiplied by the rntc per 

Kilo-watt hour agreed to in lhe respective PPAs. The solar energy kilowalls supplied by the Company are validated by the customer prior to billing and 
rncotrnition or revenue. 

Measurement 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of the estimated variable considerations 

As per the lcnns of the PPA, the variable considerations include: 
I. Expected compensation for non-fulfilment of minimum supply commitments - The Company is obliged to sell minimum solar power in a year as per the 
PPA. In case of default of aforesaid obligation, the Company is liable to pay compensation to customer as per the terms of the PPA. As at the year end the 
Company has estimated that no such penalty will be paid by the Company and accordingly no adjustment has been made in revenue. 

2. Deviation settlement mechanism charges which is imposed for over drawl/ injection and under drawl/injection from the schedule for the generators 

Income from carbon emission reduction 

The Company recognized carbon emission reduction "CER" income in the period when it is reasonably cenain that the Company will be able to comply 
with the conditions necessary to obtain these carbon emission reduction. Company recognise CER value at average price o f open contract for sale ofCER 
with customers. 

Sale of goods 
Revenue from sale or goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the 

consideration is probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with the goods, 
and the amount or revenue can be measured reliably. 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when lhe perfonnance of agreed contractual lask has been completed. Revenue from operations is 
measured at lhe fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually delined tenns of payment and excluding taxes o r 
duties collected on behalfofthe government. 

Interest income 
Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method. 

Interest income from a linancial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benelits will flow to the Company and the amount of income 
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, 

which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the ex:pected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on 
initial recomition. Interest income is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Dividend income 
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the amount has been established. 

k) Foreign currencies 
These Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. Functional currency is lhe c urrency of the 
primary economic environment in which a company operates and is nonnally the currency in which the company primarily generates and expends cash. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction lirst qualifies for 
recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the tiinctional currency spot rates of exchange at the reponing date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in 
tenns of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the ex:change rates al the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured 

at fair value in a foreign currency are trans lated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is detennined. The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss ar · -e ·ognized in other 

.....-:::::=:::::;::;,,,,.,,, nsive income or nrofit or loss. rcsnectivelv). :xt>-RMS -",?, 
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Foreign exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings, sc1tlcmcn1 gain/ loss and fair value gain/loss on derivmive conlrm;t relating 10 borrowings arc 

accounted and disclosed under linance cost. Such exchange difference docs 1101 include foreign exchange diffe rence regarded as an adjustment 10 the 
borrowings cost and capitalised with cost of assets. 

I) Income taxes 

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. Current and defe1Ted lax arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. except when 
they relate lo items that are recognistXI in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax arc also rccognisro 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

C u1Ten1 tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) us ing the tax rates and laws that have been enac ted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date and includes any adjustment to lax payable in respect of previous years. 

Subject lo exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all deductible temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unusro tax credits and 
unused tax loss: 

- deferred income lax is not recognised on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, al the time 
of the lnmsac tion, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

- deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than no! that they will be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the lax mies that arc expected to apply 10 the year when the asset is realized or the liability is sellled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date. Tax relating 10 items recognized outside profit or 
loss is recognised outside profit or loss ( either in other comprehensive income or equity). 

Deferred tax relating lo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside prolil or loss ( either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Deferred tax items are recognisoo in correlation lo the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

The carrying amount o f deferroo lax assets is reviewoo at each reporting dale and is adjusted lo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available 10 allow all or part of the asset lo be recoveroo. 

Deferroo lax assets and liabilities arc offset when they relate to income laxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to seule its 
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

m) Segment reporting 
An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from whic h it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including 

revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's o ther components, and for which discrete financial information is available. 
All operating segments' operating results are regularly reviewoo by the Company's chie f operating decision maker lo make decisions about resources lo 
be allocatoo lo the segments and assess their performance. Based on the financ ial information reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in deciding 
how to allocate the resources and in assessing the performance of the Company, the Company has delennined that it has a single operating and reporting 
segment, i.e., sale of solar power. The Company's princ ipal operations are located in India. Accordingly, the Company earns its entire revenue from India. 
All or the Company's non-current assets are located in India." 

n) Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period allributable lo equity shareholders (after deducting attributable 
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share 
to the extent that they are entitled lo participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number 
of equity shares outs landing during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating dilutoo earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period allributable lo equity shareholders and the weightoo average 
number of s hares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the e ffects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

o) Provisions, conlingcneies and commitments 
General 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or construc tive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to sellle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When 
the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursoo, the reimbursement is recognizoo as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is 

in. The expense relating lo any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reim · '2'""""""'~ 

') 
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II' the clfoc1 or the lime value o r money is material, provisiClns arc discounted usi ng a current pre-lax rate Ihm re Ike ls, when approp1·iatc. the risks SpL-cilic 
10 the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provis ion due 10 the passage of time is rl-cognizcd as a linancecost. 

Provisions arc reviewed at the end o r each reporting period and adjusted to rell1.."Cl 1he current best estimate. If it is no longer probabk: Iha! an outllow or 
resources would be required to scltlc the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

Contingent assets I liabilities 

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingenl asset, and is 
recognised as an asset. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation !hat arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; o r 
b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because: 

it is not probable that an outllow of resources embodying economic benefit will be requirt'<l to sell le the obligation; or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose ex istence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
or more uncertain future events no t wholly within the control of the entity. 
Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued lo parties for completion of assets. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each repm1ing period. 

Provisions for onerous contracts arc recognized when the expected benefit to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable 
cos ls of meeting the future obligations under the contract. 

p) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Cash generating units as defined in Ind AS 36 on impairment of assets are identified at the special purpose interim balance sheet date. Al the date of 
Special Purpose Interim Balance Sheet, if there are indications of impairment and the carrying amount of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use), an impairment loss is recognized. The carrying amount is reduced to the 
recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impainnent loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impainnent loss recognized in the prior 
accounting period is reversed to the e11:tent of increase in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impainnent, depreciation is provided on the revised 
canvinl! value of the imoaircd asset over its remainine useful Ii fe. 

q) Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement dale. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability 
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level I - Quoted (una~justt'<i) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
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· Level 3 - Valualion lcdmiqucs for which 1he lowesl level inpul 1ha1 is significant 10 1h.: li1ir valu.: measuremcnl is unobs..:rvablc. 

For assels and lia bililics 11ml are recognized in lhc fi nancial s1a1emc111s on a recurring basis, 1he Company determines whclhcr lransfers have occurred 

bclween levels in 1he hierarchy by re-assessing ca1cgorisa1ion (based on 1he lowest level inpul that is significanl 10 1he lair value mca sureme111 as a whole) 
at the end of each rcporling period. 

For lhc purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of th.: nalure, characteristics and risks 
of the asset or liability and lhe level of the foir value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fa ir value related d isclosures are g iven in 1he relevant notes. 

r) Inventories 
Inventories comprises sto res and spare parts and is carried al are carried al lower of cost and ncl realisable value. Cost includes cost o f purchase and olher 
cosls incurred in bringing the inventories lo !heir present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less costs necessary to make the sale. 

s) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash consists of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. The Company considers all highly liquid financ ial instruments, 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignilicant risk of c hange in value and having original maturities of 
three months o r less from the date o f purchase, 10 be cash equivalents. 

Shorl-term bank deposits arc made for varying periods depending on !he immediate cash requirements o f the Company. Cash and cash equivalents include 

bank deposits having original maturity period of less than three months. Bank deposits with o riginal maturily period o f more than three months but less 
than 12 months are presented as ' Other bank balances'. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months are presented as 'Other linancial 
ass~ts'. 

t) Events occurring after the balance sheet date 
Impact of events occurring after the special purpose interim balance sheet date that provide additional infonnation materially effec ting 1hc detennination 
of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the special purpose interim balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets a nd liabilities. 

u) Retirement and other employee benefits 

(i) Short-term obligations Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nonmonetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 

a lier the end of the period in which the employees render the related service arc recognised in respect of employces'services up 10 the end of the reporting 
period and arc measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities arc seltled. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations The liabilities for earned leave that arc not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months are 
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up 10 the end of the reponing period 

using the projected unit credit method. The benelits arc discounted using the discount rates for Government Securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting 
period that have terms approximating to the tcnns of the related obligation. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Pro lit and Loss. 

Defined contribution plan 
Elig ible employees of the Company receive benelits from the Provident Fund, administered by the Government of India, which is a defined contribution 
plan. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund equal to a specilied percentage of the eligible employees' 
salary. The Company has no further funding obligation under the Provident Fund, beyond the contributions elected or required to be made thereunder. 
Contributions to the Provident Fund by the Company arc charged to expense in the period in which services are rendered by the covered employees. 

Defined benefit plan 

Employees are en tilled to benefits under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ('the Gratuity Act') a de lined bcnelit post-employment plan covering eligible 

employees of the Company. This plan provides for a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death, and incapacitation or on tcnnination of 
employment. of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and tenure of employment. 
For de fined benefit retirement plan, the cost of providing benefits is dctennined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being 
carried out at the end of each annual rcponing period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in 1he balance sheet 
with a charge o r c redit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net delined 
benelit'liability or asset. 

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: service cost (including c urrent service cost and past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curlailmcnts and settlements); net intercsl expense or income; and remeasurement. The Company presents service cost and net interes t expense or income 
in Special Purpose lnlerim Statement of Pro lit and Loss in ' Employee benefits expense' . 
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v) Recent Indian Accountinl! Stand.trds (Ind AS) 
Ministry o i'Corporalc Affairs ( .. MCA'") notilks 111.:w standard or amendments 10 the exis ting standards under Companies (Indian Accounting lilndards) 
Rules as issued from time 10 time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companie,; (Indian Acwunling Standards) Amcndmcnl Ruk'S, 2022. 
applicable from April I, 2022, as below: 
Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use 
The amcndmcnls mainly prohibit an cnlily lrom deducting i'rom the cosl of properly, plant and cquip111e111 a111ou111s received from selling items produced 
while lhe company is preparing the asset for its inlcnded use. Instead, an cn1i1y will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. 
The Company does 1101 expect lhc a111endme111s lo have any impact in its recognition of ils properly, plant and equipment in its linanc ial s1a1e111c111s. 
Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 
The amcnclmenls specily 1ha1 1ha1 the 'cost of lulfilling' a contract comprises the ' costs that relate directly lo the contract'. Costs Iha! relate clircclly to a 
con1rac1 can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that conlracl (examples would be dir~'CI labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate 
directly 10 lullilling conlracls. The amendment is essentially a clarilication and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant 
impact in its linancial statements. 
Ind AS 109- Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendment c larifies which fees an enlily includes when it applies the' 10 percent' test of Ind AS 109 in assessi ng whether lo derecognise a financial 
liability. The Company does not expccl the amendment lo have any significant impact in its financial slatements. 
Incl AS 11 6 - Annual lmprovemenls lo Ind AS (202 1) The amenclmenls remove the illustration of the reimbursemenl of leasehold improvcmenls by !he 
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives 1ha1 might arise because of how lease incenlives were 
described in !hat illusrration. The Company docs not expect lhe amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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3. Propcrt~-. pla111 and Cl(nipmcnt 

F1·eehold land Buildini: & Plant & machiner~· Office Computers \"chicle Total 
imerovcmcnts equipments 

Gross block 
As at April I. 2020 3 18.39 68 ,75 4.670.31 1.9:! 0.07 0. 13 5.059.57 
Add itions <lur ing the year 1.56 0.08 1.64 
As al March 31, 2021 318.39 68.75 4.671.87 2.00 0.07 0. 13 5.061.21 
Additions during the year 6.69 0.04 6.73 
As al March 31, 2022 325.08 68.75 4,671.87 2.00 0.11 0. 13 5.067.94 

Accumulnlcd depreciation 
As at April I , 2020 5. 13 348.59 0.22 0.05 0.0 1 354.00 
Depreciation lor the year 2.61 177.50 0.38 0.01 0.0 1 180.51 
As al March 31, 2021 7.74 526.09 0.60 0.06 0.02 53-1.51 
Dcprt-ciation lor the year 2.6 1 177.59 0.38 0.0 1 180.59 
As at March 31 , 2022 10.35 703.68 0.98 0.06 0.03 71 5. to 

Net Block 
As at March 31, 2022 325.08 58.40 3,968.19 1.02 0.05 0.10 4,352.84 
As at March 3 1. 202 1 3 18.39 6 1.0 1 4. 145.78 1.40 0.01 0. 11 4,526.70 

(i) Assets charged against bo1rnwings - Propc,ty. plant and l'quipmcnt ( except Freehold land and Building & improvements) or the Compan y are subjc-ct to a fi rs t 
charge to secure the company's boii-owings. refer note I 3(a). 

lmpainnenl of Prope1ty, plant and equipment : 

The Company periodically evaluates whether events have occu1Tc<l that would render the property, plant and equipment' s ea,rying value no t rL-covcrJble. If such 
circumstances arise. U,e Company estimates the value in use by discounting the expected future operating cash flows to detennine impainnent effect. During the 
cmTcnt year. no such events have occmTcd that would render management to evaluate impairment, however the Company has conducted imp airment evaluation on 

value o f property, plant and l'qt1ipment and estimated that there is no impa irment during the period ending March 31 . 2022. TI1c recoverab le amount or cash 
generating unit is determined by the Company's management. based on a value in use calculation which uses cash llow proj ections and discount rate of 12.5% per 
annum. The recoverable amount has been calculated as per provis ions o r Ind AS 36. Cash flow projections are based on the lillure saleab le energy. tariff rate, 
expected operation and maintenance cost. transmission cost and capital expenditure. 
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4. Non-current linanrial assets 

4(a) Olhcr financial assets 
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2022 
As at 

March31.2021 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Unsecured, considered i:ood 
Claim receivable* 
Tenn deposits with original maturity or more limn 12 months*~ 
Total 

144.81 
329.36 
474.17 

155.52 
49.0 1 

204.53 
*During the year 2018-19. the Company had Jilcd a petition before the Hon"blc Central Elcclricity Regulatory Commission ("CERC") seeking dcclarntion ol'GST 
introduction as 'Chang<: in Law· Event under A11iclc 12 ol'thc PPA cx~-cuted between the Company and Solar Energy Coq1ormion of India Limited ( .. SECI") and grant 
of consequential reliefs Company by ordering SECI to pay the compensation to the Company. 

The Company has received a favourable order dated Janumy 28. 2020 from CERC in which CERC confirmed the above claim and ordered SECI to reimburse INR 
203.85 Mn with respect to GST claim. The said order fu11her suggests annuity payment model as an alternative 10 the lump sum payment. 

Subsequent to the above order. the Company received the claim acceptance orders dated June 20. 2020 from SEC!. Ftnther,SECI commilled to pay using annuity model. 
In the annuity model, discount rate of I 0.41 % (which is the rate of interest for loan component as per the CERC RE Tariff Order dated March 19, 2019) has been 
considered and accordingly annuity has been spread over a period of 11 years beginning from June 20 (as per sub-regulation ( 1) of Regulation 14 of RE Tariff 
Regulation). 

Under the said annuity model. out oflhe total claim of JNR. 203.85 Mn against GST: the Company received an upfront lumpsum amount or IN R. 31.36 Mn on May 31, 
2020 from SECI which relates to the period already lapsed from the commissioning date ti II the date of acceptance of order by SECI. 

The balance claim amount to be received from SECI in future as per annuity repayment schedule. Such amount has been discounted using 10.41 %. The present value 
computed were INR 172.49 Mn. 

The Company r(,-cognizcd a claim receivables under other financial assets and a c01Tesponding liability as defcn-cd revenue under other liability. ll1e claim receivables is 
initially measured at amo11ised cost al the present value of the future refund receivables which includes upfront amount and monthly annuity. 

Dcfcn-cd revenue will be amortised on straight line basis over the pctiod or PPA. 

**Tenn deposit of INR 329.36 ( March 2021 : 48.43) are under lien for the purpose of Debt Service Reserve Account DSRA as per requirement of lenders. 

Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securi1ies 

Non-current tax assets (net) 
Particulars 

Tax deducted at source and income tax rcfimd 
Total 

Other non-current assets 
Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Security deposits 
Ca ital advances 
Total 
Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

Inventories 
Particulars 

Stores and spares (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
Total 
Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

12.46 
12.46 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

12.22 

12.22 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

3.02 
3.02 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

9.44 
9.44 

Asal 
March 3 I, 2021 

9.88 
1.98 

11.86 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

2.70 
2.70 
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8. Curren! financial asscls 
8(a) lnvcstmenls 

Particulars 

Carried al fair mine through profit and loss 
Investment in mutual funds (quoted) 
Adi1ya Birla Sun Lite liquid Fund - Growth - Dir<.'Ct Plan 
Aditya Birla Sun Lili: Overnight Fund - Grow1h - Dire-ct Plan 
Ad itya Birla Sun Lili: Arbitrage Fund - Growth - Dire-cl Plan 
Total 

As al 
l\larch JI, 2022 

Number 

As at 
l\larch 31, 2021 

Number 

4.37.772 
55.142 

9.25.588 

As .it 
l\l:1rch JI. 2022 

.-\s ,11 

March 31, 2021 

145. 14 
61.37 
20. 16 

226.67 
Aggregate book value o f quoted invcslmcnts 226.67 

Aggregalc market value of quoted investments 226.67 

lnvt,-stment in mutual fund INR Nil ( March 2021 : I 57.07) are under lien lor the pu11Jose or debt service reserve account DSRA as per requirement of lenders. 
Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8(b) Trade receivables 
Particulars 

Trade rcceh•ablcs 
Considered good - Secured 
Considered oood - Unsecured 
Total receivables 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

65.01 
128.84 
193.85 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

65.62 
130.93 
196.55 

No trade or other receivable arc due li·om directors or other oflicers of the company either sevemlly or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are 
due from !inns or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner. a director or a member. 

Trade rcccivabk-s arc non-intcrl'St bearing and arc generally on terms or 30 to 90 days from the date of invoice. 

Tra d c rccciva bl I d I cs 8!!C111!! SC IC U C as at arc 1 I, M I 3 2022 
Particulars Outstandin!! for followin" ocriods from due date of oavmcnt 

Not due Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 year s 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
months 

(i) Undisputed Trade 135.03 58.82 - - - 193.85 
receivables - considered 

l<>ood* 
(ii) Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivabk-s - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - credit 
imnaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables-considered 
good 
(v) Dispute'(! Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - credit 
imnaired 
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Trade rccciYalJlcs :wcincr schedule as at !\larch JI. 2021 
Particulars Outstanding for followin<' ncriods from due date of oanncut 

Not due Less th:111 6 6 months -1 )'Car 1-2 )'Cars 
months 

(i) Undisputed Trade 135.08 6 1.47 -
receivab les - considered 
!!OOd'' 
(ii) Undisplllcd Tmde - - -
R~-ccivablcs - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 
(iii) Unclispuled Tmdc - - -
Receivables - credit 
imnaired 
( iv) Disputed Tracie - - -
Receivables- considered 
!!OOd 
(v) Disputed Trade - - -
Receivables - which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Tmde - - -
Receivables - credit 
imnaired 

*Includes unbilled revenue of INR 71.02 million (as al March 3 1. 202 1 : 72.37 million). 
Reier note l 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8(c) Cash and cash equivalents 
Particulars 

Balance with banks in CLIITCnl accounts 
Bank deposits (with original maturity o fless Limn 3 months) 
Total 

-

-

-

-

-

-

for the purpose ofS1atement o f Cash Flows. cash and cash equivalents comprise the fo llowing: 
Particulars 

Balance with banks in c urTenl accounts 
Bank deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 
Total ca sh and cash equivalents 
Reier note I 3(a) for asscls pledged as securities 

8(d) Other bank balances 
Particulars 

Tenn deposits with origina l maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 
Total 

2-3 years 

-

-

-

-

-

-

l\lorc th:rn J )'C:trs 

-

-

-

-

-

As at 
March 31, 2022 

173.13 

173.13 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

173.13 

173.13 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

8.20 
8.20 

Total 

196.55 

-

-

-

-

-

As at 
March 31, 2021 

16.58 
142.67 
159.25 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

16 .58 
142.67 
159.25 

As at 
March 31, 202 1 

38.37 
38.37 

Tenn deposit of INR 8.00 ( March 202 1 : 38.37) arc under lien for the purpose of Debt Service Rl"Serve Account (DSRA) as per requirement of lenders and against 
VGF. 

Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8(e) Other financial assets 
Particulars 

Unsecured, considered i:ood 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Claim receivable for change in law (refer note 4(a)) 
Total 
Refer note l 3(a) for assels pledged as securities 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0.01 
10.7 1 
10.72 

As nt 
March 31, 2021 

1.20 
11.75 
12.95 
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9. Other CUITCnt assets 

Par ticulars 

Advances to suppliers 
PrCJaid ex cnsc-s 
Total 
Reier not<: I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

10. Et uitv share ca ital 
Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
Eguity shart-s oflN R IO each 
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
Eguity shares of IN R IO each 
Total 
Refer note I 3(a) for assets pkdged as securities 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

Number 
5.00.00.000 

16. 16.984 

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding al the beginning and at the end of the year. 

Particulars 

Equity Shares 
At the commencement o r the year 
Add: movement du1ing the year 
At the end of the vear 

(b) Terms/ri2hts attached to equity shares: 

As al 
March 31, 2021 

Number 
5.00.00.000 

16. 16.984 

As nt 
l\lnrch 31, 2022 

As at 

0.28 
0. 12 
0.-10 

March 31, 2022 

500.00 

16. 17 
16. 17 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

16, 16,984 

16, 16,984 

,\sat 
l\larch 3 1. 2021 

As at 

0.95 
0.1 4 
1.09 

i\larch 31, 2021 

500.00 

16.17 
16.17 

As at 
!\larch 31, 2021 

16. 16.984 

16.16984 

l11e Company has single c lass of equity shares having a par value or INR IO per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event or 
liquidation of the company. the holder of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company. atler distribution of preferential amounts. The 
distribution wi ll be in propo11ion to the number of equity shares held by the shareho lders. 

(c) Shares held by holdin2 company 
Shares held by its holding company are as below: 
Particulars 

Avaada Energy Private Limited* 

(d) Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% eguitv shares. 

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up and held by: 
Avaada Energy Private Limited* 

(c) Particulars of shareholders holding of promoters. 

Promoter name 

Avaada Energy Private Limited* 

As at March 31, 2022 
Number of 

Shares 

16, 16,984 

% holding in the 
class 

100% 

As at March 31 , 2022 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

Number of Shares 
16. 16.984 

As at 
March 31, 202 I 

Number of Shares 
16, 16,984 

As a t March 31, 2021 
Number of Shares % holding in the class 

16. 16.984 100% 

As at March 31, 2021 
Number of 

Shares 
% holding in the Number of Shares % holding in the class 

class 
16, 16,984 100% 16. 16.984 100% 

*One equity share held by Mrs. Sindoor Mitta l as nominee o f Avaada Energy Private Limited. 

11. Instruments entirclv eguitv in nature 
Particulars 

Fully compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs) 
Opening balance 
Movement during the year 
Closino balance 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

759.28 

759.28 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

759.28 

759.28 

Each FCCD can-ics simple interest at the rate of0.000 I% per annum on the face value o f the FCCDs. Each FCCD is mandatorily conve1tible into JOO equity share of 
INR IO each of the Company at the expiry of IO years from the date of subscription. 

,\ 
\ I\ 

i 
' 

_'.I 
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12. Other c, nit\' 
Particulars 

Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Net profit for the year 

Items or other comprehensive income recognised dirL'Ctly in retained camings 
Rcmeasurements or post-employment bcnclit obligation. net or1ax 
Less - Transler to Debenture Redemption Reserve 

Closing balance (A) 

Securities premium 
Opening balance 
Movement during the year 
Closing balance (B) 

Equity component of interest free related party loan 
Opening balance 
Adjustment for repayment of loan* 
Closing balance (C) 

Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Opening balance 
Movement during the year** 
Closing balance (D) 

Total (A+B+C+D) 

As at As at 
!\larch 31 , 2022 !\larch 31. 2021 

139.03 46.24 
27.98 92.79 

( 167.01} 

139.03 

25.94 25.94 

25.94 25.94 

248.27 248.27 
(44.36) 
203.91 248.27 

167.01 
167.01 

396.86 413.24 
* The Company had entered into a loan agreement dated October 03.2017 with Avaada Energy Private Limited ("AEPL'" or the ·'holding company") for obtaining an 
interest rree loan amounting INR 463.60 Mn. TI1is loan was primarily obtained interest free to meet the ratio o f 25% projt-ct cost required to be maintained as promoter 
contribution (e.g. in the fonn or. equity, unsecured loan. unsecured debenture, fully convertible instruments etc.) as mentioned in the agreement entered into with the 
lender who is funding the remaining 75% of the project cost. 

At the time ofobtaining the loan for the execution or project; the Company estimated considering the economy and financial situation then that the said unsecured loan 
can be repaid alicr a period or eight yl-ars from the disbursement. The Company recorded a deemed equity of lNR 248.27 Mn by discounting th<: loan at 10.06 % (the 
IBR rate then) using EIR accounting. 

During the year. the Company with the pennission of lender made a pre-payment of INR 130.80 Mn to AEPL in the eu1Tent period out or surplus rund . Accordingly. the 
cmTesponding impact of loan prepayment INR 44.36 nm has been adjusted in other Equity. 

** Under the guidelines of Sec 71(4) of the Companies Act rl-ad with Rule 18(7) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has 
maintained the Debenture Redemption Reserve Account lower of: 

(i) 15% of the amount or its NCD maturing during the year ending March 3 1, 2023 and 10% of the amount of remaining outstanding NCD issued. or 
(ii) accumulated amount ofretained earnings available at the end of the financial year. 
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13 Non-current financial liabilities 

13(a) Lon, term borrowinus 

Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Secured 
Non-Convc11ibh: Debenture ( refer note (a) bdow) 
Term loan 

Bank 
Financial institutions (refer note (b). (c) & (d) below) 

Loan from rclmcd partk'S (refer note (el below) (refer note 32) 

Less: Cun-ent maturities o f long 1erm borrowings (refer note I 7(a)) 
Total 

Summary of borrowings arrangement: 
(a) Non-Convertible Debenture INR 3365.75 (March 31, 2021: INR NIL) net of processing charges 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

3,365.75 

227.15 
3,592.90 

134.80 
3,458.10 

,\ sat 
March3l , 202I 

3.507. 18 
287.55 

3,794.73 
157.32 

3.637.41 

9n March 2. 2022 the Company has issued 3.370 securt-d, redeemable, rated. listt-d non-convertible debentures "NCO" having foce value o f INR 1,000.000 each al 
fixed coupon rate of 6.75% (effective rate being 6.80% p.a.) per annum payable quarterly. at par aggregating to INR 3.370 million on private placement basis. These 
NCDs will be due for maturity on February 28. 2025. 

Thc-se NCDs are secured by: 

a. First mnking charge on both present and future comprising of moveable fixed assets. cmTent assets. all receivables. bank accounts. all reserves maintained by the 
Company in relation to the Debentures. 

b. lirst ranking security (by way of assignment / charge) over all the rights. title. interest, bcnclits. claims and demands under project documents. 
c. exclusive pledge over up to 99.99% of the total issued and pa id-up sh,ire capital of the Company and I 00% or the compulsory conve1tiblc debentures approved by its 
shareholders. 

d. Unconditional and in·evocablc corporate guarantee from Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited. Avaada SalaraMH Private Limited. C lean Sustainable Energy 
Private Limited (on a joint and severnl basis) in favour of the Debenture Trustee, in accordance with the 1enns of the Deed or Guarantee. 

As per Debenture trust deed. NCO arc also secured by lirst ranking charge on immovable properties or the Company, including project land. however as al March 31, 
2022, the Company is in process of executing necessary documentations and fillings in this regard. 

{b) Term loan from L&T Infra Debt Fund INR Nil (March 31, 2021 : INR 2719.87) net of processing charges 
The loan has been fully repaid on March 02, 2022 from proceeds or Non-Convertible Debentures .'Indian mpce long term loan from linancial institution can-ied PLR 
minus 645 basis points during the year (effective rate being 8.00% p.a.) payable at the end of every month. The loan was secured by lirsl charge on entire immovable 
properties including, tang ible/intangible assets. cm,-ent assets (both present and future) including receivables,; first charge on cash and bank accounts but not limited to 
escrow accounts/trnst and retention account and any other reserve. lirst charge on all the rights. title. interest, benefits, claims and demand in project agreement 
(including amendments in proj~-ct agreement). clearances .any guarantee, warranty • lelter of credit. pcrfo1mance bond by any party to Lite project agreement. Pledge of 
51 % of equity shares & I 00% of CC D's in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private Limited. Assignment of Unsecured Shareholder Loan infused by the Promoter. 
Company has complied all loan covenant agreed. 

(c) Term loan from L&T Infra Finance Co. Ltd. INR Nil {March 31, 2021: INR 99.37) net of processing charges 
ll1e loan has been fully repaid on March 02, 2022 from the proceeds of Non-Convertible Debentures .'Indian mpee long tenn loan from linancial institution can-ied PLR 
minus 645 basis points during the year (effective rate being 8.25% p.a.) payable at the end of every month. 1l1e loan was secured by first charge on entire immovable 
properties including. tang ible/ intangible assets. current assets (both present and future) including receivables,; first charge on cash and bank accounts but not limited to 
escrow accounts/trust and retention account and any other rese1ve. first charge on all the rights. title. interest. benefits. claims and demand in project agreement 
(including amendments in project agreement). ckarances .any guarantee. wammty • letter of credit, perfonnance bond by any party to the project agreement. Pledge of 
5 1% of equity shares & 100% ofCCD's in the Company, held by Avaada Energy Private Limited. Assignment of Unsecum l Shareholder Loan infused by the Promoter. 
Company has complied all loan covenant agreed. 

(d) Term loan from PTC India Financial Services Ltd INR Nil (March 31, 2021: INR 687.93) net of processing charges 
Indian rupee long tenn loan from financial institution carried a rnte of interf;.'St that sha ll be linked to HDFC Bank's I year MCLR. However, the Rupee Lender reserve 
the right lo realign or change the Applicable Interest Rate at the appropriate time. (ll1e cun-ent rate being 9. 75% p.a.) payable at the end of every month. TI1e principal 
amount is repayable in 7 1 quarterly instalments commencing from September 2018. The loan was st-cured by fi rst charge on entire immovable propertit'S including. 
tang ible/intangible assets, cm,·cnt assets including rt-ceivables (both present and future).: first charge on cash and bank accounts but not limited to escrow accounts/llusl 
and retention account and any other reserve. first charge on all the rights. title. interest. benefits, c laims and demand in project agreement (including amendments in 
project agreement). clearances ,any guarantee, warranty . letter of credit. performance bond by any party to the project agreement. Pledge of 51 % of equity shares & 

!00% of CCD's in the Company. held by Avaada Energy Private Limited (fonnerly known as Giiiraj Renewables Private Limited). Assignment of Unsecured 
Shareholder Loan infused by the Promoter. Company has c.omplied all loan covenant agreed. On October 8. 202 1, PTC India Financial Services Limited has novated 
IN R 686.96 million lo L&T Infrastructure Finance Company Limited. 

(c) Loan from A\'aada Energy Pri\'ate Limited amounting to INR 227.15 (March 31, 2021: INR 287.55) 
The loan is interest-free and is repayable alter compliances of loan conditions. prior approval and due satisfaction of lenders. as per Company estimation unsecured loan 

/'.::::==:::· :::,;:,:. a period of eight years from disbursement. 
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1-1. Deferred lax asselsl(li:1bili1~·) (net) 
Th.: major compon.:nis or income tax cxp.:nsc li1r the years cntkd March 3 1. 2022 and March 3 1. 2021 arc: 
Particnlars 

(a) Profit or loss section 
Cnrrenl tax: 
Cu1Tcnl tax on profits for the year 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 
Total current tax expense 

Deferred tax charge (credit): 
Relating to origim1tion and reversal of temporary difforcnccs 
Total deferred tax 

Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

As at 

March 31. 2022 

50.92 
50.92 

50.92 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31, 2022 and March 31 2021 
As at 

Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax 
At India ·s statutory income lax rate of25. I 7% (March 3 I. 2021 : 25 .17%) 
Tax effect of amounts which arc not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 
Effect of expenses that are not ckductiblc in determining taxable profit 
Tax impact of processing fees charged to Statement of Prolit and Loss due to prepayment oftenn loan 

Adjustments in respect of cun-cnt income tax of previous year 
Total adjustments 

Income tax expense/ (income) 

(c) Deferred tax liability 
Particulars 

Property, plant and equipment 
Carried forward losses 
Provision for expenses 
Provision for employee benefits 
Non-Convertible Debcntur<.-s 
Project subsidy 
Deferred revenue on GST 
Claim receivable 
Net deferred tax liabilitv 

Particulars 

Property. plant and equipment 
Carried forward losses 
Provision for expenses 
Provision for employee benefits 
Project subsidy 
Deferred revenue on GST 
Claim receivable 
Net deferred tax liabilitv 

As at 
April 01, 2021 

( 184.39) 
79.27 
(0.04) 
O.o3 

36.91 
45.38 

(42. 10) 
(64.94) 

As at 
April 01, 2020 

( 137.06) 
76.30 

0.07 
0.02 

36.89 
(23.78) 

Charge/ (credit) to 
Statement of Profit 

and Loss 
42.60 

6.83 
(0.33) 
(0.02) 

1.07 
1.67 
2.05 

(2.95) 
50.92 

Charge/ (credit) to 
Statement of Profit 

and Loss 
47.33 
(2.97) 

0.11 
(0.01 ) 

(36.91) 
(45.38) 

78.99 
41.14 

March 31. 2022 

78.90 
19.86 

6.94 
21.56 

2.56 
31.06 

50.92 

Charge/(crcdit) to 
other comprehensive 

income 

Chargc/(crcdit) to 
other comprehensive 

income 

As at 
!\larch 31. 2021 

41.14 
41.14 

41.14 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

As at 

133.93 
33.71 

6.63 

0.80 
7.43 

41.14 

March 31, 2022 

(226.99) 
72.44 

0.29 
0.05 

( 1.07) 
35.24 
43.33 

(39.15) 
(115.86) 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

( 184.39) 
79.27 
(0.04) 

0.03 
36.91 
45.38 

(42.10) 
(64.94) 

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set ofT current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax 
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax<.'S levied by the same tax authority. 
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IS. Other non-cnrrent liahilities 

Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Deferred revenue on GST (refer note 4(a)) 
Project subsidy (Viability Gap Fundin!!l"' 
Total 

:\sat 
!\larch 31, 2022 

16-l.02 
133.33 
297.3S 

:\s at 
l\larch31.2021 

172.1 7 
140.00 
312.17 

*The Company is eligible for Viability Gap Funding (VGF) suppo11 on projL-ct commercial operation or projc-cl. Company has received VGF IN R 160.00 from SECI and 
nxognised amount rL-ccivcd as dclcm:d revenue receipt under description of Capital subsidy. 

16. Lon term rovisions 
Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity (refer note 30) 
Leave encashmenl 

Total 

17. Current financial liabilities 

I 7(a) Short term borrowings 
Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Current maturities of long-tc1111 borrowings 
Loans from related patties (rclcr note 32) 

Total 
Terms and conditions: 
(a) Loan from related parties 
Interest free loan from Avaacla Energy Private Limited amounting to INR 1 J.88 (Marcl1 31, 2021: JNR 5.70) 
Interest free loan from Avaada Clean Project Limited amounting to INR 23.85 (March 31, 2021: INR 0.06) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0. 12 
0.06 
0.18 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

134.82 
35.73 

170.55 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

0 .07 
0.03 
O. IO 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

157.32 
6.16 

163.48 

The borrowing is in the nature of revolving credit facility as and when requested by the Company. II is in1crnst-frec and does not have a lixcd tenure. ll1c loan is 
repayable on demand. As al March 31. 2022. considering the size of the loan amount. the management has concluded that the related inleresl expense is immaterial and 
has nol recognised any deemed equity. 

17(b) Trade avables 
Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enle1lJrises (refer note 3 7) 
Total outstanding dues lo creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
Total 

Trade oava bl cl I c al!ellll! schc u c as at arc 1 • 2 M I 31 022 : 

Particulars 
Not due Less than I vear 

(i\ MSME - 0.11 
/ii\ Others - 9.37 
(iii) Disnutcd dues - MSME - -
iv)Disnutt"CI dues - Others - -

Trade oayablc al!eiul! schedule as at March 31, 2021 : 

Particnlars 
Not due Less than I vear 

(i\ MSME - -
(ii) Others - 6.61 
l<iiil Disouled dues - MSME - -
(iv)Disouted dues - Others - -

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

0. 11 
10.66 
10.77 

Outstandinl! for followiue: oeriods from due date of oavmcnt 
1-2 vears 2-3 vcars More than 3 vears 

- - -
1.27 0.00 0.02 

- - -
- - -

Outstandinl! for followinl! oeriods from due date of pavmcnt 
1-2 vcars 2-3 vears More than 3 vears 

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

As at 
March 31, 2021 

6.61 
6.61 

Total 
0.1 I 

I0.66 

-
-

Total 

-
6.61 

-
-
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18. Other enrrent liabilities 

Pn rticulars 

Srntutory dues 
Dderrcd n:vcnuc on GST ( re for note 4(a)) 
Pro ject subsidv as viab ility gap funtling 
Total 

19. Short term ro,•isions 
Particulars 

Pro,•ision for employee benefits'' 
Gratuity (relcr note 30)* 
Leave encashment** 

Total 
*Expressed in absolute - Gratuity INR 1702 (March 202 I : INR 868.00) 
**Expressed in absolute - Leave cncashment IN R 141 5 (March 2021: IN R 648.00) 

:\s nt 
l\larch 31, 2022 

1.07 
8. 15 
6.67 

15.89 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

As at 

March31 , 2021 

1.89 
8.15 
6.67 

16.71 

As at 
March 31, 2021 
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20. Re\'enuc from opcrntions 
Particulars 

Sale o r electric ity'' 
Other operating re\'enue 
Revenue from Goous anu Service Tax claim(rc li:r note 4(a)) 
Total 
''Revenue li-mn sale of ekctricity is net off <kviation charges INR 5.46 (March 2021: INR 5.50). 

21. Other Income 
Particulars 

Pro lit on sale o f investments 
Interest income on deposits 
Unwinding interest income on GST c laim (refer note 4(a)) 
Change in fair value of mutual fund investments 
Project subsidy (Viability Gap Funding) (refer note 15) 
Sak ofCER cr~-dit 
Gain on foreign exchange 
Liability no longer m 1uired 
Interest on income tax refund 
Total 

22. Ernplo\'ee benefits expense 
Particulars 

Salary. wages and bonus 

Contribution to proviuent fund and other funds 
Gratuity expense (Refer no te 30) 
Leave encashmcnt 
Sta IT W elf arc 
Total 

23. Finance Cost 
Particulars 

Interest costs on account of 
Loan from bank 
Loan from financial institution 
Loans from related parties (refer note 32) 
Interest on Non Conve11iblc Debenture 
Delayed payment or statutory dues 
Bank charges on bank guarantee 

Other borrowing costs 
Processing fee 
LUT commission charges 
Others 
Total 

24. Depreciation expenses 

Particulars 

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 

For the year ended 
l\larch 31, 2022 

667.23 

8. 15 
675.38 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

6.54 
8.35 

16.74 

6.67 

0. 16 
0.05 

38.51 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

3.09 
0.13 
0.05 
0.03 
0.18 
3.48 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

264.04 
26.05 
18. 19 
0.04 
0 .1 8 

85.76 

1.24 
395.50 

For the year ended 
March 3 I, 2022 

180.59 
180.59 

For the yea r ended 
l\larch 31, 2021 

703.74 

23.52 
727.26 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

4.93 
10.98 
14.68 
0.88 
6.67 
6.6 1 

22.48 

0.62 
67.85 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2021 

2. 11 
0.09 
0.04 
0.02 
0. 11 
2.37 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

44.09 
305.39 

26.28 

0.07 
0 .25 

5.35 
10.35 
8.95 

400.73 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

180.5 1 
180.51 
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25. Other cxpcnses 

Particul:ll's 

Rent & Brokcmgc expense 
l egal and profess ional expenses 
Fees and subscription 
Electricity expenses 
Insurance expenses 
Auditor remuneration,:, 
Printing and stationery 
Guest house expenS(.'S 
Plant maintenance expenses 
Security expenses 
Travelling and conveyance 
Rates and taxes 
Electricity Sale expenses 
Project delay penalty 
CSR expenses (refer note 27) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Total 

*Payment to auditors 
Particulars 

Statutory audit fee (including GST) 
Other services 
Total 

26. Enrninl(s per share (EPS) 

Earnings per share: 
Bas ic 
Diluted 

Basic earnings per share: 

For the )·car ended 
l\larch 31, 2022 

0.29 
2.58 
0.20 
6.77 
6.24 
1.53 
0.04 
0.2 1 

17.49 
9.40 
0.87 
7.38 
0.19 

1.50 
0.72 

55.41 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

0.65 
0.89 
1.54 

0.36 
0.36 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation o f basic earnings per share are as follows 

Particulars For the year ended 

Profit for the year 
Earnings used in the ca lculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the pmposes o f bas ic earnings per share* 
*FCCD considered as equity for calcula ting weighted average number of equity share 

Diluted earnings per share: 

March 31, 2022 

27.99 
27.99 

7. 75.45. 184 

For the year ended 
MarchJI , 2021 

5.02 
2.85 
0.32 

13.58 
7.84 
0.59 
0.05 
0. 12 

15.72 
7.75 
0.63 

0.46 
21.69 

0.55 
0.38 

77.55 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

0.59 

0.59 

1.20 
1.20 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

92.8 1 
92.8 1 

7.75.45.184 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Profit for the year 27.99 92.8 1 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 27.99 92.81 
The weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes o f diluted earnings per share reconciles with the weighted average number of equity shares used in the 
calculation of basic earnings per share as follows: 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 

7,75.45, I 84 
7.75.45.184 

7.75,45. 184 
7.75,45, 184 

TI1cre is no potentia l equity shares that arc anti-dilutive and therefore not cons idered for the weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings 
per share. 
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27. Disclosure l'Clatin~ to Corporate Social Responsihilit~· (CSR) Expenditure 

As per pro\'isinns ofSecli" n 135 of1hc· Companies A". 2013. the Company has In spend m leas!'.!% or 1he average proli1s or 1he preceding 1hrcc linancial years Inwards 
CSR. Accordingly. a CSR commiuee has been ll1nne<l lt1r eanying out 1hc CSR activi1ks as per Schedule VII nflhc Companies Acl.2013 . 

Particulars 

(i) Gross amount required to be spcnl by the Company during the year 
(ii) Amount spent during the year on the following in cash 
(iii) Short foll at the end of 1hc year 
(iv) Total of previous years sho1tfoll 
(v) Reason for sho1tlall 
(vi) Nature of CSR activitic'S 
(vii) Details of related pa,ty transactions. e.g .. contribution to a trust 
controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant 
Accounting Standard* 
(viiii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability inc1med by 
entering into a contmctual obligation. the movements in the provision during 
the car 

For the year ended 
March 31. 2022 

1.44 
1.50 

Not applicable 
Prcvcn1ive healthcare 

1.50 

Not applicabk 

Fo,· the year ended 
March 31. 2021 

0.55 
0.55 

Not applicable 
Pn:ven1ive healthcare 

0.55 

Not applicable 

*Rcprcsenls contribution to Avaada foundation a controlled trnst to support !he education. empowenncnt. health. environment and rnral elcc1rifica1ion, emphazing more 
on women education and cmpowc1mcn1. 

28. Financial Ratio 
Particulars 

1 Current Ratio (in limes) (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 

Reasons for variance:- Decrease in investment and current bank deposits resulted in decrease 
in current asset. 

2 Debt-Equity Ratio ( in times) [Total Debt/ Equity)* 

3 Debt Se1vice Coverage Ratio (in times) 
[(Profit after Tax excluding exceptional items+ Finance Cost+ Depreciation / 
(lntcr<.-st payment+ Principal rcpaymenl)) ** 

4 Return on Equity Ratio ( in times) (Profit allcr tax /Average shareholder 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Reasons for variance:- Reduction or ncl income (PAT) due to pre-payment penalty and 
processing tees charged in the Slatemcnl of Profit and Loss on account o r prepayments of 
existing bon"Owing. 

lnvento1y Turnover Ratio (Net Sales/ Average inventory)*** 

Tmde Receivable Turnover Ratio ( in times) [(Revenue from opcmtions) 
/Average Trade Receivable)] 

Net capital tumover ratio ( Revenue from operations / Working capital) 

Reasons for variance:- Decrease in investment and current bank deposits resulted in decrease 
in current asset. 

Tmde payables turnover ra1io=Net crt'<lit purchases / Average Payable**** 

Net Profit ratio (%) [Profit aller tax/Revenue from Operations] 

10 Return on Capital employed (Profit before tax+finance cost)/(Tangible nel 
worth+ Total debt*+ Deferred tax liabilities) 

11 
Return on investment= Income generated from investments / Time weighted 
average investments***** 

*Total debt Includes non•current borrowing and current borrowing. 

For the year ended 
March 31 2022 

1.97 

3.10 

1.68 

0.02 

Not applicable 

3.46 

3.52 

Not applicable 

4.14% 

9.65% 

Not applicable 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

J.41 

3.20 

1.69 

0.08 

Nol applicable 

3.70 

1.61 

Not applicable 

12.76% 

10.58% 

Not applicable 

Variance% 

-42% 

-3% 

-1% 

-7 1% 

Not applicable 

-7% 

118% 

Not applicable 

-9% 

-1 % 

Nol applicable 

**Interest payment and repayments represents the future interest payments and repayments of long term debt due within twelve months of the reprnting date. 
***Nol Applicable, as the Company has only inventory of stores and spares pai1s. l11ere is no inventory of finished goods. 
**** As the company payables outstanding arc for other expenses. for which no cr~'<lit period is defined 
***** s the Company has made sho1t tenn investments (bank deposits and mutual funds) for utilising the surplus fund 

13199Y~ • ncial ratios measures presented may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. 
' I l'J 

,0 ,S' 
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"i Accountants~y)· 
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2X. (hi OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

a) ThL' C{1mpany do nol have any lknami prn]k'rly, wl11,;n,' any prrn.:el'ding lrns hl'cn initiatl'd or prnding ag,1inst thl' Company ror holdmg any 
BL·nnmi prnpcrtv. 

b) The Company do not have any transactions with c{1mpanics struck off. 

c) 111c Company do nnt hnve any chnrgcs or satisfaclinn which is yet to be rcgislen:d with ROC beyond the statutmy period. 

d) The Comp,my have not trnded or invested in c1ypto cum:ncy or vi11ual cum:ncy during the linancial year. 

e) The Company !ms not been dcclarL'd wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government nr ,my gowrnment authority. 

I) All the title deeds/ lease deed nr immovable propc11ics arc hd<l in 1he name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

gl The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested li.mds to any other per:.on(s) or entity( ics). including foreign cntitll·s { Intermediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities i<lentilie<l in any manner ,vhatsocver hy nr on behalf of the Company 
(UILimati.: Bencliciaries) or; 
ii) provide any guarantee. security or th<: like W or on behalf of the Ultimate Bendkiarics. 

h) The Company have not rccelv1.,-d any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics). including foreign entities (Funding Patty) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writin.1! or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatso1..'\'Cr by or nn behalf or thi.: Funding Party 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or; 
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Bcncliciaries. 

i) TI1e Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts tlrnt has heen surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other rckrnnt provisions of the 
lm:omc Tax Act. I 96 I). 
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29. Disclosure of significant accounting _judgements, estimates :111<1 assumptions 

The preparation of the Company's linarn:ial state111ents requires management to make jmlgemcnts. estimates and assu111ptions that all'.:ct the rep<111ecl 
a111ounts or revenues. expenses. assets and liabilities. and the accompanying disclosun:s. am.l the disc losure <il' contingcnt liabilities. Uncc11ainty about 
these assumptions and L'Stimates could rL'SUlt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities alli.:cted in 
ruturc ocriods . 

. Judgements, estimates and assumptions 
The judgements and key assu111ptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation unce11a inty at the repm1ing date. that have a 
s ign ificant risk of causing a nmterial adj ustment to the can-ying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. arc described below. 
The Company based its judgements. assumptions and estimates on parameters available when th.: linancial statements were prepared. Existing 
c ircumstances and assumptions about future developments. however, may change due to market changes or c ircumstance;,-s arising that arc beyond the 
control of the Comoanv. Such chan2cs are rdkcted in Lh<.: assumotions when thcv occur. 

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions arc as specified bclow:-

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

The Company rcvkws the useful life o f prope1ty. plant and equipment at the end of each rcpo1ting pe1iod. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expense in future periods. 

Taxes 
Dcfcn-ecl tax assets are recognised for unabsorbed tax losses. unabsorbed depreciation and all deductible tcmporm-y differcnce;,-s, to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable pro lit will be available against which they can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount o f 
dcfc1Ted tax assets that can be rt'Cogniscd. based upon the likely timing mid the level of li11ure taxable prolits together with future tax planning 
strategies. 

The Company has reviewed tax losst-s and unabsorbed depreciation. and detcnnincd that it is probable that sullic ient future taxable profits will be 
available against which such tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Thus. the Company has recognized a cm,-espond ing defe1Ted tax 
asset on the same. 

Any changes in these assumptions may have an impact on the measurement of the defc1Tcd taxes in future 

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits) 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation arc determined using 
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the Future. TI1ese 
include lhc dctcnnination of Lhc discount rate. future salm-y increases and mot1ality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-tcnn nature. a defined benelit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In detennining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India. the management 
considers the interest rates of government bonds in India. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for Lhe specific countries. TI10se moi1ality tables tend to change only at interval in 
response to demographic changes. Future salm-y increases and gratuity increases are based on cxpcckd future inllation rates in India. 

Fair value of interest-free long term loans 

TI1e fair value of interest-free loans is detennincd using discounted cash flow method using a market interest rate of a comparable instrnment having 
the same tenns. TI1e difference between the fair value and transaction value has been considered as deemed equity contribution from the parent 
comoanv hence recognised and included in eouitv. 



84

Fermi Sol:irfarms Prirnte Limited 
CIN - ll-tO 106DL2013FTC2-t81!-18 
Notes to financi:tl statements for the year ended l\htrch 3 1. 2022 
(All amotmls in INR Million, unkss stated otherwise) 

30. Gratuit~· and other post e11111lo~·ment beuefit plans 
(a) Defined benefit plan - gratuit~· 
The Company has a ddined bendil for gratuity. Evc1y employee who has compktcd live years or more or servk e gels a gratuity on <lcpa11urc ,ll 15 
days salary (last drawn s,1la1y ) 1i1r each completed year or service. The Company provides lor the liability in its books or accounts basL'CI on the 
actuarial valuation. The following 1abks summarize the components or net bendit expense recognized in the statement or profit and loss and the 
funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respc>ctivc plans. 

The princhial assu11111tions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Compau~·'s_.p:..:.l:..:.a:..:.n..;;a.:..r.a.e..;;s;;;.ho.a.,c.cv.:.:n...:l':'1e:..:.lo=-'cc'·.:..: _________ _ 
March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021 

Discount rate 
Salal)' increment rate 
Retirement age A VP and below 
Retirement age VP and above 
Mm1ality table 

Withdrawal rates: age related and past experience 
Age 
Upto 30 year 
Between 31 and 44 years 
Above 44 years 

7.40% 
7.00% 

60 years 
60 years 

6.88% 
7.00% 

60 years 
60 years 

Indian Assured lives 
M011ality (2012-14) 

Indian Assured lives 
Mo11alily {20 12-14) 

% Withdrawal 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

3% 3% 
2% 2% 
1% 1% 

TI1e principal assumptions arc the discount rate and sala1y growth rate. TI1e discount rate is generally based upon the market yield available on the 
Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that or the liabilities and the salmy growth rate takes account o finllation. seniority. 
promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation arc as follows: 
CmTcnl service cost 
Interest cost 
Re-mL"asurcments 
Benefits paid 
Closing defined benefit obligation 
*Expressed in absolute - lnterL'St cost Rs. 4,997 and Re-measurements Rs. 1.935 

Balance sheet 
Present value or defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 
Plan asset/ {liability) 

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 
Interest cost 
CutTent service cost 
Acquisition Adjustment 
Net benefit expense 
*Expressed in absolute - Interest cost Rs. 4.997 

Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income 
Actuarial (gain) / loss 

Due to change in demographic assumptions 
Due to change in financial assumptions 
Due to change in experience adjustments 

Total expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income 
*Expressed in absolute - expense recognised in OCI Rs. 1,935 

March 31, 2022 March 3 I, 2021 
0.05 0.03 
0.00 0.01 
0.00 0.0 1 

0.01) 
0.05 0.04 

March 31, 2022 March 3 I . 2021 
(0.05) (0.04) 

(0.05) (0.04) 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
0.00 0.0 1 
0.05 0.03 

0.05 0.04 

March 31. 2022 March 3 1, 2021 

(0.01 ) (0.00) 
0.02 0.01 
0.01 0.01 
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A quantitative sensitivit~· aualysis for sil(nificant assum1>tion as al March 31, 2022 is as shown below: 
Discount rate 

Sensitivily Lewi 0.50% increase 0 .50% dccn:asc 
Increase/ ((kcrcase) in ddim:d bendit obligation (0.01) 0.01 

Sah,n· growth rate 

0.0 1 
0.50% decrease 

(0.0 1 l 

A <1uantitali\'I: sensitivil)' analysis for si1:nificanl assumption as al March 31. 2021 is as shown below: 
Discount rate Salarv growth rate 

Scnsitivily Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Increase/ (de-crease) in dclincd benefit obligation (0.01) 0.01 0.01 (0.01 ) 

Scnsilivilics due to mortality & withd111wals arc not malerial hence impact of change due to these is nol calculated. Scnsitivilies as to rate of increase 
of pensions in pay111c111. rate of increase of pensions before retiremenl and life expectancy are 1101 applicable. 

ll1e following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years: 

Within one year• 
1-5 years 
More than 5 years 
*Expressed in absolute- within one year Rs. 4,624 

March JI, 2022 
0.00 
0.04 

March JI. 2021 
0.00 
0.02 

The average duration or the dctint-d benelit plan obligation al the end of the reporting period is 3.38 years (March 31, 202 1: 2.77) 

Description of risk exposures: 

Valuations arc based on ce11ain assumptions. which arc dynamic in nature and vmy over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follows: 

a) Salaiy Increases- Actual salmy increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salmy increase rate assumption in future valuations will also 
increase the liability. 

b) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan·s liability. 

c) Mm1ality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities. 

d) Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can 
impact plan's liability. 

(b) Compensated absence : The amount of the provision INR 0.06 (March JI 2021: INR 0.03) 

The principal assumptions used in determining compensated absence obligations for the Company's plan arc shown below: 

Discount rate 

Salary increment rate 

Leave availmcnl rate 

Retirement age A VP and below 

Retirement age VP and above 

Mortality table 

Withdrawal rates: age related and past experience 

Age 
Upto 30 year 

Between 31 and 44 years 

Above 44 yt-ars 

March 31, 2022 March JI, 2021 
7.40% 6.88% 
7.00% 7.00% 
0.50% 0.50% 

60 years 60 years 
60 years 60 years 

Indian Assured lives Indian Assured lives 
Mortality (2012-14) Mm1alily (20 12-14) 

% Withdrawal 

March JI, 2022 March 31, 2021 

3% 

2% 

1% 

3% 

2% 

1% 

A quantitative se11sitivity a11alysis for significant assumption as at March JI, 2022 is as shown below: 

Discount rate 
Sensili vity Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (0.01) 0.01 

Salary growth rate 

0. 50% increase 

0.0 1 

0.50% decrease 

(0.0 1) 

A qua11titative sc11sitivity analysis for significaut assumptio11 as at March JI, 2021 is a5 shown below: 

Discount rate 
Sensitivity Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (0.00) 0.00 

(c) Defined contribution plan 

Salary growth rate 
0.50% increase 

0.00 

0.50% decrease 

(0.00) 

....-::::==:::::--~· c year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Lo=s"-s------.,----#.,,..~l!e+~.---
March 31 2022 

Contribution to Employee' s Provident Fund .09 

.09 
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31. Or>crnting Segments 
Th.: Company's Board or Directors· is rnnsidered 10 bl' the chid' operating 1kcision maker in accordance with Ind AS I 08. Based on the 
linancial inlonnation review.:d by the chi.:!' operating decision nwker in dl-ciding how 10 allocate the resnurc.:s and in as,sessing the 
performance or the Company. the Company has determined that it lws a single operating mid reporting segment. i.e .. sale or power. The.: 
Company's principal operations arc located in India. Accordingly. the Company cams its entire revenue from India. All ol'the Company's 
non ClllTCnt assets are located in India. 

32. Related party trnnsactions 

(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship 

(a) Related parties where control exists 
Ultimate holding Company 

Holding Company 

Fellow subsidiarit'S 

Key managerial personnel 

(ii) Transaction with related pnrties during the )'cnr 

Pnrticulars 

Repayments of lone: term borrowine:s 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 

Proceeds from current borrowine:s 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 

Rconyment of current borrowings 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Project Private Limited 

Reimbursement of expenses on behalf of company 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Project Private Limited 

Contribution of fund in relation to CSR expenditure 
Avaada Foundation 

Compensation to key managerial personnel 

Avaada Ventures Private Limited 

Avaada Energy Private Limited 

Avaada Clean Project Private Limited 
Avaada SataraMH Private Limited 
Clean Sustainable Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Foundation 

Prashant Choubey (Director) 
Ravi Kant Verma (Director) 
Shwela Manik Mankar (Company secretary) 

Holding Compnnv and other related party 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

130.80 -
130.80 -

33.93 35.00 
33.93 35.00 

34.45 31.43 
34.33 31.43 

0.13 . 

30.10 3.71 
6.19 3.64 

23.91 0.06 

I.SO 0.55 
1.50 0.55 

No remuneration has been paid to the directors of the Company for the services rcceivl'CI during the year ended March 31. 2022 

(iii) Balances outstandinu at the end of the year . . .... ' 
Particulars Holdi111 companv 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Long term loan payable 332.80 463.60 
Avaada Energy Private Limited* 332.80 463.60 

Current borrowine:s 35.73 6.10 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 11 .89 6. 10 
Avaada Clean Proiect Private Limited 23.85 0.06 

. . 
*mcludmg equity component of INR 203.91 1111lhon (As at March 3 1. 202 1: INR 248.27 m1lhon) . 
All the amounts payable 10 related pai1ies above are unsecured and will be sellled in cash. 

(iv) Avaada SataraMH Private Limited. Clean Sustainable Energy Private Limited and Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited has given 
corporate guarantee for an amount IN R 11 ,030.00 ( March 31 . 202 1: Nil) in favour of debenture holder of the Companies. 
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33. Fair mines 

The cany ing amounts and foir value o r the Compa11y·s linanc ial instruments. other than those with carrying amounts that arc rcasonablc approximations 
o r foir values: 

Financial assets 
Measured al amortised cost 

Claim rect:i vabks 
Bank deposits 
Investments 
Trade n.-ceivabk s 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Interest accrued on fi xed deposits 

Financial liabilities 
Measured at amortised cost 
Borrowings from banks and financial 
institutions (inc luding current maturities) 
Non-Convertible Debenture 
Long term borrowings from related parties 
Short tcnn borrowings from related parties 
Trade payables 

34. Fair value hierarchy 

Note 

4(a) and S(e) 
4(a ) and S(d) 

8(a} 
8(b} 
8(c) 
8(d) 
8(c) 

I 3(a) 

13(a) 
13(a) 
17(a) 
l 7{b} 

Carr\'ino value Fair value 
As at As at As at As at 

March 3 I. 2022 March 31. 2021 March 31. 2022 M arch 31 . 2021 

155.52 167.27 155.52 167.27 
337.56 87.38 337.56 87.38 

226.67 226.67 
193.85 196.55 193.85 196.55 
173.13 159.25 173. 13 159.25 

8.20 38.37 8.20 38.37 
0.0 1 1.20 0.01 1.20 

3.507. 18 3.507. 18 

3,365.75 3.365.75 
227.15 287.55 227.1 5 287.55 

35.73 6.1 6 35.73 6. 16 
10.77 6.6 1 10.77 6.61 

TI1c lair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure lair value that are either observable or unobservable and 
consists of the following three levels: 

- Level I - Q uoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowL-st level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fai r value measurement is unobservable 

Qunntitntive disclosures fair vnlue measurement hierarchy for assets as at Mnrch 31, 2022 

Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 
- Investments in Mutual fund 

Total 
Fair value measurement using 

Quoted prices in Significant Significant 
active markets observa ble inputs unobservable 

in uts 
(Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021 

Financial assets measured at FVTPL: 
- Investments in Mutual fund 

Total 

226.67 

Fair value measurement using 
Quoted prices in Significant Significant 
active markets observable inputs unobservable 

in uts 
(Level I) 

226.67 
(Level 2) (Level 3) 
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JS. Financial risk 11u111ai,(c111cnt objccth·cs ;md IJOlicies 

In its ordina1y operntions. the c,,mpany's activities expose it 10 the various types of risks. which arc associ.ucd with the linancial inslrnmmis and markets in 
whid1 it opemtL'S. The Company has a risk manage1rn:n1 po licy which covers the foreign exchanges risks and other risks associated with th.: linancial assets and 
liabilities such as imcrest rnte risks and crL'<iit risks. The risk management policy is approved by LhL' board or directors. The l11llnwing is the summa1y of the 
main risks: 

(a) Market risk 
Markel risk is the risk 1ha1 changes in market pric<'S. such as foreign exchange rates (ClllTency risk ) and inlcresl nllcs (inlcresl rnle risk} will affect the 

Company's income or value of it's holding of linancial instnimenls. The objective o f market risk management is to manage and control m arket risk exposures 
within acccpiabh: parameters. while optimising the rclum. 

(i} Interest rate risk 

lntcr~-st rate risk is the risk 1ha1 the fair 1ha1 the fa ir v;1lue or future cash flows o f a linanc ial instrument will fluctuate because o f changL-s in market interest rnles. 
The capita l expenditure of the company is linanccd by loans. the shareholders' fund and internal proceeds. The intcrcsl bearing loans o f the Company comprises 
o f both lixcd and lloating rnle. 

Interest rate sensitivity 
The fo llowing table dcmonslrnles the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and borrowings. With all other variables held cons1an1. 
the Company's pro Iii before tax is affoclcd on account of impact on floating rate borrowings. as follows: 

March 31, 2022 
Non-Conve1tiblc Debenture 
Impact on profit before tax on account of increase in interest cost 

Impact on pro Iii before tax on account of decrease in interest cost 

March 31, 2021 
Tenn Loan fro m banks and linancial ins1i1u1ions 
Impact on pro tit before tax on account of increase in interest cos! 

Impact on protit before tax on account o f decrease in interest cost 

(ii) Foreign currency risk 
ll1e Company is nol exposed to any material foreign currency risk. 

(b) Credit risk 

Amount of loan 

3365. 75 

3507. 18 

lncreasc/(dccreas 
e) 

in % 

1.00% 

- 1.00% 

1.00% 
-1.00% 

Effect on 
profit(loss) before 

tax 

33.66 
(33.66) 

35.07 
(35.07) 

Credi I risk is the risk thal countcrpmty will not meet its obligations under a financial inslrumenl or customer contract. leading lo a linancia l loss. ll1e Company 
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities. including deposits with banks and linanc ial 
institutions. foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments. Credit risk is managed by company's established policy. procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management. 

Financial a ssets that potentially exposed the Company 10 credit risk are lis ted below: 
Particulars 

Trade rL-ceivablcs 
Claim receivables 
Other financial assets 
Total 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

193.85 
155.52 

0.01 
349.38 

As at 
March 31 202 1 

196.55 
167.27 

1.20 
365.02 
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(i) Tn1dc rcccivn hlcs 

Customer Credit risk is managed 011 the basis o r Company's established policy. procedures and cnntro l rdating to cuslClmer cred it risk manage1111:nl. 
Outstanding customer receivables ar, regularly monitored. The company evaluates the conce111ra1io11 or risk with n:spccl lo trade receivables as high . Company 
primarily gcnemtcs revenue from sale o r power to s ingle o ff taker i.e. SEC!. which is the sok customer or the Company. SECI is high rated public sector 
undet1aki11g with credit mting or Al+ as per ICRA Limited. However since the tr;idc receivables mainly comprise o r slate utilitit-s /gove111mcnl entities .the 
conmanv docs not fort-sec anv CR'<lil risk .itlachcd lo receivables from such state utilities /1wvc111menl entities. The commrnv docs not hold collatera l as securilv. 

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits 

Credit risk from balaneL'S with b.rnks are managed by the Company's management in accordance with the approved policy. Investments or surplus funds arc 

made only with approvt-d counleqiattics. Countcrpai1y crl-dil limits arc reviewed by the management on an annual basis. The limits arc set lo minimise the 
co1iccntration or risks and therefore mitigate linancial loss through countcrpa11y's potential failure to make p,1ymen1s. 

(c) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risks arc managed by the Company's management in accordance with Company's policy. The Company's objective is lo maintain a balance between 
continuity of funding and llcxibility through the use or bank loans and equity shares. The company allcmpts lo ensure that there is a balance between lhc timing 

or outllow and in llow of Funds. The Company assessed the conccnt1111ion of r isk with respect to relinancing its debt and concluded it to be low since company 
has access lo a sullicient variety of sources of funding. TI1e Company is not subject to any restrictions on the use of its capital that could signilicant ly impact its 
ope1111ions. In light of these facilit ies. the Company is not exposed to any signilicant liquidity risk. 

Liquidity and Interest risk tables 
The following tables summarises the Company's remaining contractual maturity lo r its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. TI1c 
tabk.'S have been drawn up based on the undiscountcd cash !lows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company is required to pay. TI1e 
tables include both interest and principal cash llows lo the extent that interest llows arc lloating rate. the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at 
the end of the repo11ing period. TI1e contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company is required lo pay. 

TI1e table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31. 2022: 

Particulars Effecti\'e interest Within I year Between I and 5 More than 5 years Total Carrying amount 
rate years 

% .a_ 
Variable interest rate 
Tenn loan from banks* 
Non Conve11ible Debenture 6.80% 358.87 3.63 1.56 3,990.43 3365.75 

Non-Interest bearing 
Long-term loan from related pmties 332.80 332.80 227.1 5 
Short term bmrnwings 35.73 35.73 35.73 
Trade payables 10.77 10.77 10.77 

405.37 3,631.56 
*Includes principal and interest cash nows. 

332.80 4.369.73 3,639.40 

The following table summarises the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative linancial assets. TI1c table has been drawn up based on the 
undiscountcd contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that wi ll be earned on those assets. 

Particulars Effective interest Within 1 year Between I and 5 More than 5 years Total Carrying amount 
rate years 

% .a. 
Variable interest rate 
Bank deposits** 3.00%- 5.10% 8.24 344.17 352.42 337.56 
Claim receivable** 10.4[% 26.40 105.59 109.99 241.97 155.52 

Non-Interest bearing 
Investments 
Trade receivables 193.85 193.85 
Cash and cash equivalents 173.13 173. 13 
Other bank balances 8.20 8.20 
Interest accrned on fixed deposits 0.0 1 0.0 1 

409.83 449.76 109.99 594-39 868.27 
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The tabli: below provides tktails regarding th.: contraclual maturili<:s or linancial liabilities as m March 31. 202 1: 

Pnrticulars Effective interest Within I year Between I and 5 !\lore tlrnn 5 )'Cars 
rate yca1·s 

cyo .a. 
Variable interest rate 
Term loan from Ii nanc ia I 

8.00% - 9. 75% 
218.34 1,7 11.40 4,002.83 

inslilulions'' 

Non-Interest bearing 
Long-term loan from related paities 463.60 
Sho1t Lenn bonmvings 6.16 
Trade payables 6.61 

231.11 1,711.40 4,466.43 
*Includes principa l and inlerc'SI cash flows. 

Total C,11-r~·ing amount 

5.932.57 3,507.18 

463.60 287.55 
6. 16 6. 16 
6.61 6.6 1 

6.408.94 3,807.50 

The following table summarises the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative linancial assi:ts. The table 
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assels including interest thal will be earned on those assets. 

has been drawn up based on lhe 

Particulars Effective interest Within I year Between I and 5 More than 5 years 

Variable interest rate 
Bank deposits** 
Claim receivable** 

Non-Interest bearing 
Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash L"quivalents 
Other bank balances 
Interest accrncd on fixed deposits 

rate 
0/o .a. 

3.00%-5.10% 
10.41% 

**Includes principal and interest cash flows 

36. Capital management 

87.38 
28.49 

226.67 
196.55 
159.25 
38.37 

1.20 
737.91 

years 

105.59 136.38 

105.59 136.38 

Total 

87.38 
270.46 

170.55 

528.39 

Carrying amount 

87.38 
167.27 

226.67 
196.55 
159.25 
38.37 

1.20 
876.69 

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going coneem while maximising the return to stake holders through the 
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Capital strnclure of the Company consist of net debt (non-cu.,-ent borrowings and current maturities of non­
current borrowings offset by cash and cash equivalents as detailed in note 8 (cl) and total equity of the company. 

In order lo achieve this overall objective of capital management, amongst other things. the Company aims to ensure that ii meets financial covenants attached 10 

the bon·owings facilities defining capital structure n:quircmcnts. where breach in meeting the financial covenants may permit the lender to call the bmrnwings. 

There have been no breach in the linancial covenants of any borrowing foci lilies during the year. There is no change in the objectives. policiL"S or processes for 
managing capital over previous year. 

Long tc1m bo1rowings (including current maturity of long tenn bmTowing) 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net debt (A) 

Total equity 
Capital and net debt (8) 

Gearing ratio I (A)/(8) I 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

3.592.90 
(173.13) 

3,419.77 

1.172.31 
4,592.08 

74.47% 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

3.794.73 
(159.25) 

3 635.48 

1.188.69 
4 824.17 

75.36% 



91

Fermi Solarfanns Prirntc Limited 
Notes to linancial statements for the yc,u· ended i\larch 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR Mi lli1111s unless statL'd othL'rwisL') 

37. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defied under the I\ISI\IED .\ct, 2006 
BasL'd on inti1rn11ion n:cdVL'd hy the company from its suppliL'r regarding their sta(us undL'r thL' Micro. Small and Medium Entcq1risL's 
DL'vclopmL'nt Act. 2006 th<: relevant infonn.uion is providL'd bl'low: 

Pnrticulnrs 

a) The principal amount and thL' interest due thereon (to be shown sepamtcly) remaining 
unpaid to m1y supplier at the end or each accounting year. 

b) The amount or interc-st paid by the buyer in terms or section 16 of the Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprisc-s Development Act. 2006. along with the amount or the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year: 

c) Th.: amount or interest due and payable for the period or delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
intcrc-st spL-cilit-d under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006: 

d) The amount of interc-st accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year: 
c) The amount or further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

until such date when the interest dues above arc actually paid to the small enterprise. for the 

purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro. Small 
and M(,-dium Enterprises Development Act. 2006. 

As at 
i\larch 3 I . 2022 

0.11 

0.11 

As at 
l\larch 31, 2021 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been detennined to the e.xtcnt such pmties have been idcntilied on the basis of information 
coll1;.-ctt-d bv the Manal!emcnt. This has been relied unon bv the auditors. 

38. Commitmcnts and contingcncies 
a) Commitments 

The Company has entered into power purchase agreements (PPA) with Solar Energy Corpomtion of India (SECI) for a total tcnn or 
25 years with a commitment to supply power having tariff of INR 4.43 /KwH during the te1m of the agreement. 

b) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. 

39. Evcnts after the rcporting pcriod 
There are no significant rcpo1tabk events occurring atier the reporting period. 

40. Approval of financial statements 
The financial statements wen: approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2022. 

41. 

llicre has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

42. llie Company did not have any long tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material lor1;.-secable 
losses. 

43. TI1e Company's business is generation and sale of solar energy. The Company believes that so far, there is no significant impact of 
COYID-1 9 pandemic on the financial position and perfonnance of the Company. Further, the Company is not expecting any 
significant change in estimates as of now as the Company is running its business and operations as usual without any major 
disruptions. 

"f (!) 1/ ' 
Shwcta Mauik Mankar 
Company Secretary 

Place: Noida 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For and on bchalf of board of directors 

Prnshant Chonbcy 
Director 
DIN: 08072225 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 

Ravi Kant Verma 
Director 
DIN: 07299159 
Place: Noida 
Date: May 30. 2022 




